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CHAIRPERSON’S FOREWORD

Hon., Speaker, on behalf of the Decentralized Funds Accounts Committee pursuant to
Standing Orders 199, it is my pleasant duty and honor to present to the House the report of
the Committee on audited financial statements for the National Government Constituencies
Development Fund for five (5) Constituencies in Vihiga County for financial years

201372014, 2014/2015 and 2015/2016.

Oversight over national revenue and expenditure is amongst the roles of the National
Assembly as stipulated under Article 95 (4) (c) of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010. Further,
Article 226 of the Constitution provides that an Act of Parliament shall provide for the
designation of an Accounting Officer in every public entity at the national level who is
accountable o the National Assembly for its financial management. In addition, Article
229{8) mandates this House to debate and take appropriate action on audit reports from the

Auditor-General,

In fulfilment of these constitutional provisions, the National Assembly Sianding Orders 205B
established the Decentralized Funds Accounts Committee, whose mandate is to examine
reports of the Auditor-General for the National Government Constituencies Development
Fund, among other funds. The Committee, which was established in the Thirteenth (13™)
Parliament, received a backlog of audited reports dating back from the financial year
2013/2014 from the two hundred and ninety (290) constituencies. Given that each
constituency 15 audited independently, the Committee adopted a strategy of examining reports

for constituencies in each County for the three financial vears concurrently.

The Committee received written evidence from the Chief Executive Officer of the National
Government Constituencies Development Fund being the Accounting Officer of the NG-CDF
as provided under Section 67 (1) of PFM Act, 2012, The Committee also engaged the Fund
Account Managers, both present and former to clarify various issues raised by the Auditor-
General during their tenure in office given the critical role that they play as AIE holders as
stipulated under Section 12{4) of the NG-CDF Act, 2015.

The Committee held six (6) sittings. It received evidence from the Fund Account Managers

from the five (5) constituencies namely Vihiga, Sabatia, Hamisi, Emuhaya and Luanda.



The oral and written submissions received formed the basis of observations, findings and
recommendations of the Committee as outlined in this report under each of the audit queries.

These are also contained in the Minutes and Hansard Reports of Committee proceedings.

Hon. Speaker, | wish 0 commend the office of the Chief Executive Officer of the NG-CDF
Board for ensuring that Fund Account Managers prepared their responses in time and
appeared before the Committee as scheduled. | also commend the Project Management
Committees in the constituencies for engaging the public in project identification which
ensured that priority projects which had the greatest benefits to the communities were
implemented. The majority of these projects were on infrastructure development in various
public schools and public utilities.

Hon. Speaker, | wish to express appreciation to the Honourable Members of the Committee.
the Office of the Speaker, and the Clerk of the National Assembly, the Parliamentary Liaison
Offices of the Auditor-General and the National Treasury and the Committee Secretariat for

tacilitating the Committee in the production of this report.

Hon. Speaker, on behalf of the Decentralized Funds Accounts Committee, | now wish to table

this report and urge the House to adopt it and its recommendations therein.

HON. DR. GIDEON MULYUNGI, CBS, EBS, MP

CHAIRPERSON, DECENTRALIZED FUNDS ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE



1.0 CHAPTER ONE
PREAMBLE

1.1 Establishment of Decentralized Funds Accounts Committee (DFAC)

1. The Decentralized Funds Accounts Committee is a Select Commities ¢stablished pursuant
to the National Assembly Standing Orders 205B as a split Committee from the extensive
mandate of the Special Funds Accounts Committee.

2. It is amongst the six Watchdog Commitiees of the Thirteenth Parliament which examines
the reports of Auditor-General laid before the House.

1.2 Mandate of the Committee
3. In accordance with Standing Orders 2058, the mandate of the Committes is to examine the
reports of the Auditor General on the accounts of?:
a) The National Government Constituencies Development Fund
b) The National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board
¢} The Mational Government Affirmative Action Fund

d) The National Government Affirmative Action Fund Board.

1.3 Guiding Principles
4. In execution of its mandate, the Committee is guided by principles on public finance
management as provided in the Constitution of Kenva 2010, Public Finance Management
Act, 2012 as well as established customs, traditions, practices, and usages.
3. The Public Finance Management principles require public money to be used in a prudent
and responsible manner and that on direct personal liability.
6, Article 201 provides for the fundamental principles that .. .shall gwide oll ospects of
public finance in the Republic...” These principles are, inter alia-
(i}  201{a) there shall be openness and accountability, including public participation in
financial matters.
{if)  201{d) public money shall be used in a prudent and responsible way; and
(i} 201{e) financial management shall be responsible, and fiscal reporting shall be
clear.
7. Article 226(5) of the Constitution provides that “If the holder of a public affice, including a
political office, directs or approves the use of public funds comtrary to law or



instructions, the person is liable for any loss arising from that use and shall make good

the loxs, whether the person remains the holder of the office or not ™",

8.1t is on this basis that each Fund Account Manager being the Accounting Officer of the
NGCDF is held directly and personally liable for any loss of public funds under their
watch.

9. Section 68 (1) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 provides, inter alia, that- “An
accounting officer for a national government entity, Parliamentary Service Commission
and the Judiciary shall be accountable to the National Assembly for ensuring that the
resources of the respective entity for which he or she is the accounting officer are used in
a way that is lawful ond owthorized, and effective, efficient, economical and

transporent, ”

10, This provision obligated Fund Account Managers as accounting officers in the
constituencies to appear before the Decentralized Funds Accounts Committee to respond
to audit queries raised by the Auditor-General.



1.4 Committee Membership

1. The Committee comprises of the following members: -

Chairperson

Hon. Dr. Gideon Mutemi Mulyungi, CBS, EBS, M.P.

Member for Mwingi Central Constituency

Wiper Democratic Movement-Kenya

Vice-Chairperson
Hon. Gertrude Mwanyanje Mbeyu, M. P.

Member for Kilifi Constituency

Orange Democratic Movement

Hon. Mejjadonk Benjamin Gathiru M. P.
Member for Embakasi Central Constituency

Limited Democratic Alliance

Hon. Kahangara Joseph Mburu M. P
Member for Lan Constituency

United Democratic Alliance

Hon. Caroline Jeptoo Ngelechei M. P.
Member for Elgeyo Marakwet Constituency
Constituency

Independent Member

Hon. Barre Hussein Abdi M. P
Member for Tarbaj Constituency

United Democratic Alliance

10

Hon. Mboni David Mwalika M.P,

Member for Kitui Rural Constituency

Wiper Democratic Movement — Kenya

Hon. Momanyi Innocent Obiri M.P.
Member for Bobasi Constituency

Wiper Democratic Movement — Kenva

Hon, Mogaka Stephen M.P,
Member for West Mugirango

Jubilee Party
Hon, Dorothy Muthoni Tkiara M.P,

Member for Meru Constituency

United Democratic Alliance



Hon. Wanyonyi Martin Pepela M. P, Hon. Osogo Bensuda Joyce M.P.

Member for Webuye East Constituency Member for Homabay Constituency
Ford Kenva Orange Democratic Movement
Hon. Guyo Adhe Wario M. P. Hon. Kipngor Reuben Kiborek M.P.
Member for North Horr Constituency Member for Mogotio Constituency
KANL United Democratic Alliance

Hon. Lentoijoni Jackson Lekumontare M. P.
Member for Samburu East Constituency
KANL

11



1.5 Commiitee Secretariat

12. The Secretariat facilitating the Committee comprises of the following stafl:

]
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
&)
9)

Ms

M=

. Ruth M. Gakuya

. John Mutinda

. Sharon Koskei

. Clinton Sindiga

. Elizabeth Kibati

. Wilson Mwangi

. Calvin Karung o

. Zainabu Wario
. Esther Mbatha

10} Mr. Muchiri Mwangi

12

Clerk Assistant 1

Clerk Assistant 111

Clerk Assistant 111

Legal Counsel 11

Research Officer |11

Fiscal Analyst 111

Media Relations Officer 11
Serjeant-at-Arms Il
Protocol Officer 111

Audio Officer 11



2.0 INTRODUCTION

2.1 Examination of Audited Financial Statements for the National Government

iy

14,

Constituencies Development Fund (NGCIDF)

Examination of reports of the Auditor-General for the WNational Government
Constituencies Development Fund (NGCDF) for the 290 Constituencies in Kenya is
amongst the mandate of the Decentralized Funds Accounts Committee as outlined in the
Mational Assembly’s Standing Order number 2058.

. The Committee received a backlog of these reports which dates to 2013/2014 financial

year which had not been examined by the Twelfth Parliament.

Given the fact that each of the 290 Constituencies is audited independently, the
Comminee adopted a strategy of scrutinizing financial statements of each Constituency
for 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and 2015/2016 financial years concurrently.

.The report contains observations, findings and recommendations arising from

examination of fifteen (15) reports of the Auditor-General for the NG-CDF for financial
vears 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and 2015/2016 for the following fifteen (5) Constituencies in
Vihiga County:

17 Wihiga Constituency
2) Sabatia Constituency
1) Hamisi Constitugncy
4y Emuhaya Constituency
31 Luanda Constituency

13



20.

21.

3.0 CHAPTER TWO

REPORTS ON THE AUDITED ACCOUNTS FOR VIHIGACONSTITUENCY
NG- CDF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS 2013/2014, 2014/2015 AND 20152016

VIHIGA CONSTITUENCY

. The Fund Account Manager. Mr. Joe Godwin Oduor appeared before the Committee on

25" April 2023, to respond to the audit matters raised in the report of the Auditor General
for Vihiga Constituency for the financial years 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and 20152016 as
follows:

FINANCIAL YEAR 201372014

1.0 Cash and Cash Equivalent

. The statement of assets and liabilities as at 30" June 2014 reflected cash and cash

equivalent balance of Kshs, 7,041,907.00. However, the cash flow statements and note 11
showed Kshs 7,398.079.00 as at the same. Further, note 15 indicated a brought forward
balance of Kshs 336,172.40 that had not been incorporated in the statement of assets and
liabilities, Consequently, the accuracy and completeness of cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs. 7,041,097.00 could not be confirmed as at 30™ June, 2013/2014.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

. The opening balance for financial year 2013/2014 was Kshs. 356,172.40. Due to an

oversight, it was not included in the statement of financial assets and liabilities so as
reflect the correct cash and cash equivalent. Kshs. 7,398,079.00 was the correct cash and
cash equivalent for the vear. The statement of financial assets and liabilitics was amended
and availed to the auditors for review.

Caruniftee Observaiion

The Committee observed that the statement of financial assets and liabilities were
amended and availed 1o the auditors for review

Cammittee Recommendarios

The Committee recommends that the Accounting Officer showld ensure that the Fund
Aceount Managers, -

al keeps financial and other records that are accurate, reliable, and compleie.

b adhere to accouniing sitandards prescribed by the Public Sector Aecounting
Standards Board (PSASB) as provided by Section 81(3) of the PFM Act, No. 18 of
2002 which provides that “The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial
statements in a form that complies with the relevani accounting standards
prescribed  anmd  published by the Accounting Standards Board from
fime tor timme ™,

14



22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

c) adhere io Regulation 100 of the PFM Aci iNational Government), 2013 which
provides that “Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with
receiving cash or making payments a cash book showing the receipts
and payments and shall maintain such other books and registers as may
be mecessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accounts
of the vote for which he or she is responsible”.

d) adhere to Regulation 101¢4) of the PFM Act (National Government), 20135 which
provides that “An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Jorm that complies with the relevani accoumting stundards prescribed by the Public
Sector Accounting Standards Board, not later
than three months after the end of the financial year and submit them o
the Auditor General with o copy to the County Treasury, the Controller
of Budget and the National Treasury™.

2.0 Going Concern

The High Court of Kenya in its ruling on petition 71 of 2013 held that the Constituency
Development Fund Act 2013 establishing the Constituency Development Fund since
enactment of the Constitution of Kenya 2010 was unconstitutional rendering the existence
of the Fund illegal. It is not clear whether legislation providing for the Fund will be in
place within the period given by the High Court of twelve months for the Fund to
continue existing.

As a result, the going concern status of the Constituency Development Fund is doubtful.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

The NG-CDF Board fulfilled all the conditions set by the High Court concerning the
petition against the CDF {Petition 71 of 2013). A new Act NG-CDF Act 2015 which was
amended in 2022 is in place and has comprehensively addressed the issue of
unconstitutionality of the Fund.

Commitfee Observation

The Commiitee observed that the issue was overtaken by events as it was addressed
thraugh the passing of the NG-CDF Aes, 2015 and its Regulations 2016 which aligned the
Fund functions to National Government functions. The query was adequately addressed
and resolved

3.0 Under Expenditure

Vihiga CDF had an approved Budget of Kshs. 70,426,000.00 for the year ended 30™ June
2014. However, the Fund spent Kshs. 63,398,735 against a budget of Kshs. 70,426,000.00
resulting to unexplained under expenditure of Kshs, 7,027,271.00 approximately 10% of
the total budget. The low budget absorption denied the constituents the much-needed
services delivery,

15



Response by the Fund Account Manager

27. The under expenditure of Kshs. 7,027,271 was due to the late receipt of funds in the
constituency on 30" May, 2014 of Kshs, 13,003,315 out of which Kshs. 7,398,079
remained unspent as at 30" June, 2014. The funds were absorbed in the subsequent
financial year.

Cammiftee Observations

28, The Committee observed that: —

(i) The budget under absorption relates to unspent halances held by the constituency as
at 30 June, 2014
{it) Under absorprion was occasioned by the late receipt of funds in the constituency.
The funds were received on 30 May, 2014
{iii) The funds were absorbed in the subseguent financial vear,

Commitiee Recommendation
29. The Commiitee recommends the National Treasury should ensure timely and adeguate

disbursement of funds to the National Governmeni Constituencies Development Fund
Board for immediate release to the Canstituencies,

16
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL YEAR 20142015

L0 Unimplemented Projects - Kshs. 25,337,929

During the year, the Fund had budgeted to implement 130 projects costing 61,621.418.
However, the Fund did not implement various projects valued at Kshs. 25,337,029.00
{$5%) that were to be done within the financial vear. It is not ¢lear, and management did
not explain how this backlog of projects will be done to provide the planned and budgeted
sérvices to the constituents.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

The Constituency underutilization was occasioned by the delayed disbursement of funds
by the exchequer, and this affected the utilization of funds for the year. The various
projects were later funded and implemented 1o completion.

The completion certificates for the projects were availed to the auditor for review.

Corrrnitiee Observaiion

The delay in releasing the exchequer by the Natiomal Treasury affected project
implementation ol the PMC level,

Conmnitice Recommendation

The National Treasury should ensure timely and adequate disbursement of funds to the
National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board for immediate release o
the Constitiencies.

2.0 Budget Control

Vihiga CDF had an approved budget of Kshs.141, 358, 181.40 for the financial vear ended
30" June,2015, However, the Fund spent Kshs, 94,389,385.10 resulting in under
expenditure of Kshs. 46,%68,796.30, approximately 33% of the total budget. The under
expenditure in this 2015 was auributed to be unutilised but carried forward the previous
vear's budget of Kshs. 21,526,790.00. The Fund also overspent on seven expenditure
items to the tune of Kshs, 17,416,722.25, having spent Kshs. 66,456,767.55 against a
budget of Kshs. 49,043,045, The Fund did not operate within its approved budget
estimates during the vear ended 30" June, 2015,

Response by the Fund Aecount Manager

The under-expenditure of Kshs. 46,968,796.30 was due to the delayed funding from the
exchequer; however, the various projects were funded and completed.

Kshs. 49,043,043 was part of the allocation for the financial vear 2014/2015 of Ksh.95,
638,949.00. The over-expenditure as indicated, was an expenditure of the balances
brought forward and disbursement of Kshs, 40,233,932 for 2013/2014: hence there was
no over-expenditure on the seven expenditure items.

17



Commiftee Observations
38. The Committee ohserved that:

(i} As per copies of AlEs, bank statements and projeci implementation report
submitted by the Fund Account Manager, it was established that the under-
absorption of Kshs 46,968 796.30 was due to rthe delaved funding from the
exchequer.

(it} Kshs. 49,043,045 was part of the allocation for the financial vear 2014/2015 af
Ksh 95 63894900

fiiiy  There was ro over-expenditure on the seven expenditure items as indicated. This
was an expenditure of the balances brought forward and a disbursement of
Kshs, 40,233,932 for 20132014,

fivi  The management submitted to the OAG the copies af AIEs, bank statements and
project implementation report to support the wilization af funds held by the
canstituency as ai 30 June 20135

Commirttee Recommendation

39. The National Treasury showld ensure timely and adequate disbursement of funds to the
National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board for immediate release to
the Constituencies.



40.

41

42.

FINANCIAL YEAR 2015/2016

LU} Presentation, Accuracy and Completeness of the Financial Statements.

According 10 International Public Sector Accounting Standards {cash basis), financial
statement presentation format prescribed by the National Treasury requires the
Management to include the action taken on the previous auditors’ recommendations. In
the year 2014/2015, Vihiga CDF had a qualified opinion. However, no report on the
progress of the follow-up of the audit issues raised was included in the financial
statements for the vear under review.

Hesponse by the Fund Account Manager

. The Constituency omitted the report but complied with the reporting framework in the

subsequent financial years,

Commiltee Observation

The Committee observed that the Fund Account Manager acknowledged the omission of
the report on the follow-up of audit issues raised in the previous vear's auditor's
recommendations and confirmed that they later complied with the reporting framework in
the subseguent financial vears.

Commitiee Recommendations

43, The Committes recommerndy that: -
iy The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Managers:-

a) keeps financial and other accounting records that are accurate, reliable, and complere,

b) adhere to accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board (PSASE) as provided by Section 81(3) of the PFM Act, No. 18 of 2012 which
provides thai ‘The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Jorm  that  complies  with  the  relevant  accounting  standards
prescribed  and  published by  the Accounting  Standards  Board  from
tirme fo fime'

¢/ adhere io Regulation 100 of the PFM Act (National Government), 201 5 which provides
that “Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with receiving cash or
muaking puayments u cash berark showing the receipts
and  payments and shall maintain such other books and registers as  may
be necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the wecounts
af the Vote for which ke or she is responsible’

d) adhere to Regulation 101(4) of the PFM Act (National Government), 2005 which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
form  thar  complies with the  relevant  accounting  standards
preseribed by the Public Sector Accounting  Standards Board, not later
than three months after the end of the financial year and submit them to

19



{ir}

the Auditor General with a copy to the County Treasury, the Controfler
af Budget and the National Treasury'

The NG-CDF Board engages the Public Sectar Accounting Standards Board (PSASB)

to conduct continuous capacity building on financial reporting standards for all NG-
CDF Constitwency staff

2.0 Lack of Contract Register

44. The Management did not maintain any contract register as a result it was difficult to

43,

determine how the whole process of contracting and payments were being undertaken
during the year under review.
Response by the Fund Account Manager

Procurement and award of contracts are usually undertaken by the PMCs, and payments
are made by the PMCs. All contract/ procurement records are kept at the PMC's offices.

46. They also keep records of PMC’s pavments as well as copies of tender documents.

47.

48.

Cammifice Observatioms

The Commitiee made the following observations: -

il This was a case where managemeni failed to provide documents for audit within the
statwiory timelines since the conmtract/ procurement records were misplaced al the
PMC s affices.

{ii} This was a case of poor record-keeping at the PMC s offices.

(1ii}The Committee observed that the Office of the Auditor General verified that the
Management was the custodian of the procurement records and contracis.

{tv) The Management laler provided copies of AIEs, bank statements, project code lisi and
implemeniation status repart to support the utilisation of rolled-over projects. These
documents were verified by the OAG, thereby resolving the matier.

Commiitee Recommendations

The Commitiee recommends that: -

al The Accounting Officer should ensure that the Fund Account Manager maintains
proper records af each project which include profect returns, tender documents,
payment and completion certificates, bill of quantities and project designs, coniracis,
membership aof the Project Management Committees, profect mimites  amd
procuremeni documents and a duplicate file o be maintained by the Projeci
Management Commitiee,

b} The NG-CDF Board should conduct continuous capacity building in basic record
keeping for afficers in PMC offices,

20



3.0 Budget Control and Performance

49, The Fund approved budget receipts were Kshs. 150, 132,053 including Kshs, 50,906,380
being unutilised cash balance brought forward from 2014/2015. However, actual receipts
amounted 10 Kshs, 98,025,772 as analvsed below,

7 P P Actual  on | Budget
Receipt/Expense | Original . Final 5 e Yo of
Item Budget | AdIUSIMEDSS | 5 0ot ;g:i;“”“"’“ g:}:.f:;{:: Utilisation

i b c=a+b d e=c-d f=d/c %o
Transfers  from

5 5

NG-CDF Board | 99,225,473 | 50:906.580 [ 150,132,053 | 98,001,772 | 52,130,281 | 65.3%
Froceeds  from ) : ) i ; |
Sale of Assets
Other Receipts % 24,000 24,000 24,000 = 100 (MY
TOTAL
SEORIPTS 99,225,473 | 50,930,580 | 150,156,053 | 98,025,772 | 52,130,281 | 65.3%
PAYMENTS
Compensation of
Emplovees 1.949. 900 | 613,307 2,563,207 1,549 S0 613,307 Th. 1%
Use of goods and | g o4 392 | 4,061,754 13,686,146 | 9,624,392 | 4,061,754 | 70.3%
SCTVICCS
Transfers (4]
Other 5
TR —— 4{]11}53,";3“ 35,3!3.]!’16 ?S,S?lﬂ@ﬁ W,EJSE,E‘!"]'H 35,]!&,1&5 53.1%
Units
ﬁ;ﬁ;e fs”“‘“ and | 41 185304 | 9,544,770 52,930,164 |43,385394 | 9,544,770 | 82.0%
::;":;5‘“““ °f | 261,000 | 405.657 666,657 261,000 405,657 | 39.2%
TOTA 4 4,61 g, ; 145,214, 9 ol e z J
'OTAL 5274616 | 49,943,654 45218270 | 95,274,616 | 49,943,654 | 65.6%

50. Further, the Fund underspent on all the five {5) components/compensation of employees,
use of good and services, transfer, and acquisition of assets by diverse percentages
ranging from 39.2% to 76.1%. Consequently, the Fund did not operate within the
approved budget, which might have negatively impacted the delivery of prompt services
for the constituents.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

51. The Constituency’s intention was o implement all projects/budgets within the financial

year. This has however hampered by delays in disbursement of funds.

52. During the year under review, the Constituency received Kshs, 48,225,473 on 29" June,
2016 hence the huge closing balances as of 30" June, 2016, as it was impossible for the
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amount 1o be spent during the financial year 2015/2016 due to the procurement processes
involved.

53. The projects were later implemented to completion.

Committee Observations

54, The Commitiee observed thai: -

(i)

fii)

The late dishursement of funds by the exchequer affects the delivery of services for the
CORSHINERTS,

The fundamenial cause of pending ongoing projecis being dominant as they wait for
Surther funding to completion was the inadequate allocation of funds with the hope af
completing the projects in subsequent financial vears.

Commintee Recommendartions

55, The Commirttee recommends that: -

i1

fii

(1ii)

The Committee recommends that the National Treasury should ensure timely and
adequate  disbursement of funds 1o the National CGovernment Constituencies
Developmeni Fund Board for immediate release o the Constituencies.

The NG-CDF Board should immedieately discourage the partial allocation of funds to
projects and ensure thal projecis are completed af most within two financial years.
Further, the NG-CDF Commiitee should ensure proper caosting af projects is done
through consultation with the refevant Government depariment to ensure realistic cost
esiimales.,

The NG-CDF Bogrd should come up with a realistic policy framework of costing
prajects for each constituency by the end of the IV quarter of Financial Year
20232024, which is informed by the cost of materials, cost of transportation, taxes,
the lopography of each constituency and reports from the relevant Government
department.

4.0 Project Implementation and Management

36. The CDF was to implement a total of 70 projects. However, it was noted that twenty-three

(23) (32.86%) of the projects had not started, 40 (37.14%) were still ongoing, and seven
(7} (10%) were completed.

57. The implementation status is detailed below:

Sector Not Value Ongoing | Value Completed | Value
started
Administration | | [0, 00 ] 11470202 | - 5
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Education 18 12,300,000 |32 54,362,619 5,500,000
Emergency ] ] [ 3,767,047 -
Environment l 2,025,005 | O 0 -
Roads 0 5 4,500,000 -
Security 3 2,400,000 I £00,000 5
Sports - l 2,025,005 -
TOTAL 13 16,825,005 |40 78925473 5,500,000

58. Given the foregoing, the Fund did not deliver the expected services to the constituents and
did not achieve its development objectives.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

59. The Constituency’s intention is to implement all projects/budget within the financial year.
This was, however, hampered by delays in the disbursement of funds from the Board,

60. During the yvear under review, the constituency received the first disbursement from the
Board on 23" November, 2013 of Kshs. 31,000,000 and the second disbursement of Kshs.
48,225,473 on 29" June, 2016. The first disbursement was spent mainly on bursaries and
administration, thus affecting timely implementation of the rest of the projects since funds
were not available until June 2016.

Committee Observations
61. The Committee observed that: -
(i) The late disbursement of funds by the exchequer affects service delivery o the
consiifuents,
(i) The fundamental cause of pending ongoing projects being dominant as they wait for
Sfurther funding for completion is the inadeguate allocation of funds with the hope af
completing the projects in subseguent financial years.

Commmittee Recommendations

6. The Commiitee recommends thai: -
a) The Committee recommends that the Navional Treasury should ensure timely and
adequate  funds  disbursement 1o the National CGovernment Constituencies
Development Fund Board for immediate release to the Constituencies.

b} The NG-CDF should immediately discourage pariial allocation of funds to profects
amd ensure that projects are completed at most within two financial years. Further,
the NG-CDF Commitiee should ensure proper costing of projecis is done through
consultation with the refevant Govermment depariment to enswre realisiic cosi
Estimaies.
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c) The NG-CDF Board showld come wp with a realistic policy framework of costing
projecis for each constituency by the end of the 1" guarter of Financial Year
2023/2024, which is informed by the cost of materials, cost of transportation. iaxes,
the topography of each consiituency and reporis from the relevant Government

department.
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REPORTS ON THE AUDITED ACCOUNTS FOR SABATIA CONSTITUENCY
NG- CDF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS 2013/2014, 2014/2015 AND 20152016

SABATIA CONSTITUENCY

The Fund Account Manager, Mr. Tom M, Gimonge, appeared before the Committee on
26" April 2023, to respond to the audit matters raised in the report of the Auditor General
for Sabatia Constituency for the financial years 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and 20152016,

FINANCIAL YEAR 2013/2014

LU Accuracy and Completeness of the Financial Statements

The Fund did not comply with the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board and the
template contained in gazette pronouncement issued by IPSAS Board. The statement of
cash flow and statement of comparison between budget and actual amounts were not
prepared and appended as an integral part of the financial statements.

As a result, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements as at 30" June 2014
could not be confirmed.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

As part of their responsibility, Sabatia constituency office complied with International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (cash basis) in the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements.

The summary statement of appropriation showing final budget and actuals was appended,
However, they regretted the non-attachment of the cashflow statement which was an
oversight at their end.

Comimniftee Ohservafion

The Constituency affice now complies with the International Public Sector Accounting
Standards in preparing and presenting financial staiemenis,

Crommittee Recommendations
The Committee recommends that:
(i} The NG-CDF Board should ensure thar the Fund Account Managery:
al keeps financial and accounting records that are accurate, reliable, and complete.
b adhere to accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Standardys Board (PSASE) as provided by Section 81(3) of the PFM Act, No. 18 of
2012, which provides that *The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial
statemenis tn a form that complies with the relevant accounting standards

prescribed and published by the Accounting Standards Board from
fime to time."
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c) adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Act (National Government). 2015, which
provides that ‘Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with
receiving cash or making payments a cash book showing the receipis and
payments and shall maintain  such other books and registers as may
be necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accounts
af the Vate for which he or she is responsible” and

d) adhere to Regulation 101(4) of the PFM Acit (National Government), 2013, which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Sormn fhat complies with the relevant accounting standards prescrifed by ihe
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, Hat later
than three months after the end of the financial year and submit them fo
the Auditor General with a copy fo the County Treasury, the Controlfer
of Budget and the National Treasury.’

(i) The NG-CDF Board engages the Public Sector Accowmting Standards Board (PSASB)

for conduct condimous Capacity hm'.l'ﬂ'fﬂg o _ﬁ.rram::'aur reporting sterrdderds Sor afl NG-
COF constitwency staff

2.0 Going Concern

70, The High Court of Kenya, in its ruling on Petition 71 of 2013, held that the Constituencies

71

T3.

74.

Development Fund Act, 2013, establishing the Constituency Development Fund since the
enactment of the constitution of Kenya 2010, was unconstitutional, rendering the
existence of the Fund illegal. It is not clear whether the legislation providing for the Fund
will be in place within the period given by the High Court of twelve months for the Fund
to continue existing.

. A% a result, the going concern status of Sabatia Constituency Development Fund is

doubiful,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

. The Petition 71 of 2013 was addressed by the enactment of the new National Govermment

Constituency Development Act, 2015, which addressed the uncertainty/ going concemn.
Commitiee Observation

The Commitiee ohserved thal evenis overtook the issue as f was addressed through the
passing of the NG-CDF Aet, 2015 and its Regulations of 2016 which aligned the Fund
Sfunctions to the National Gevernment functions. The query was adeguately addressed and
Fesolved,

3.0 Reallocation without Approval

During the year under review, the Fund budgeted Kshs. 3,564,466.00 for emergency
projects. However, only Kshs. 525,000.00 was spent, leaving a balance of Kshs.

3,039,466.00, which was reallocated for the purchase of land for Vokoli High Schoal
without approval.
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Th.

7.

78.

Consequently, the propriety of the expenditure could not be confirmed as at 30™ June
2014,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

Section [2(3) of the CDF Act, 2013 defines “Emergency” as an urgent, unforeseen
expenditure for which it is in the opinion of the committee that it cannot be delayed until
the next financial year without harming the public interest of the constituents.

The balance of Kshs, 3,039.466.00 was allocated to Vokoli Girls High School by the
committee to enable the school to purchase land for expansion. This was necessitated by
the high transition rate and conversion of the neighbouring Bunyore girls’ high school to a
national school,

Crmmniitee Chhyervaiions

The Commitee observed that: -

(i) Although the gesture was noble, the Fund Account Manager reallocated emergency

Jfunds without the approval of the NG-CDF Board, and

(i} The money was wsed to purchase land for Vokoli High School, which did not gualify as

79.

cn emergency project.
Comminee Recommendationy

The Commitiee recommends that the National Government Constituencies Development
Fund Board enswres that the Fund Account Managers adhere to sections 6(2) and section
8 of the National Governmemt Constituencies Development Fund Aci, 2015 which
provides thai:

{1t} Section 6(2) ‘Once funds are allocated for a particular project, they shall remain
allocated for that project and may only be re-alfocated for any other purpose during
the financial year with the approval of the Board.": and

{1} Section & “(1} A portion of the Fund, equivalent to five per centum {hereinafter
referred fo as the "Emergency Reserve™) shall remain unallocated and sholl be
available for emergencies that may occur within the Constituency.™
“{2}) The Constituency Commitiee shall determine the allocation of the emergency
reserve in accordance with the Act. ™ and
(3) "Emergency” shall be construed to mean an urgeni, unforeseen need for
expenditure for which it is in the opinion of the commiitee that it cannot be delayed
until the next financial year withowt harming the public interest of the
consiituents.”
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FINANCIAL YEAR 2014/2015

1.0 Budget Control And Project Implementation

80. Sabatia CDF had an approved budget of Kshs. 93,776,968.00 for the vear ended 30™ June

82.

3.

2015. However, the Fund spent Kshs. 108.724,638.90 resulting in over expenditure of
Kshs.12,947.670.90, approximately 14% of the total budget. The over-expenditure in the
budget was due to under-expenditure in the previous vear's budget by Kshs. 43,416,383,
However, the cash in bank balance as at 30™ June 2015 was Kshs, 30,668,711.50 resulting
in a deficit of Kshs. 12,747,671.50. As a result, it had not been clear how the CDF
committee intended to rectify the anomaly,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

The total payments of Kshs. 108,724,639_50, included payment of Kshs, 43,416_383 made
from the cashbook balance brought forward from 2013/2014 and Kshs. 95,776,968
received in the vear under review,

Kshs. 30,668,711.50 was the cashbook balance as at 30™ June, 2015, Therefore, there was
no over expenditure of Kshs. 12,947,670.90 as this was an approved expenditure from the
previous financial vear's allocation,

Cammiftee Qbservaiion

The Committee observed that the over-expenditure was brought about by the financial vear
201372014 balances transferred to 2014/2015. Further, the Committee was satisfied by the

explanations and documentation availed o the OAG for audit review, The query was adequarely
addresged and resolved.
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FINANCIAL YEAR 2015/2016

1.0 Accuracy, Completeness, and Presentation of the Financial Statements

84.

83.

86.

87.

8.

89,

90,

The International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)) — cash basis financial
statements presentation format prescribed by the Kenya Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board requires the management to include the action taken on the previous
wvear's auditor’s recommendations,

In the year 2014/20135, Sabatia CDF had an adverse audit opinion. However, the repart on
the follow-up of the issues raised in the audit report was not included in the financial
statements for the year under review as required. Therefore, the presentation of the
financial statements did not conform to IPSAS (Cash basis) as prescribed by Kenyva
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board in accordance with the Public Finance
Management Act, 2012,

In the circumstances, the completeness and presentation of the financial statements as at
30 June 2016, could not be confirmed.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

As at the time of preparation of the financial statements, Sabatia NG-CDF had not
received the final certificate for the financial year 2014/2015 and hence did not prepare
the report on follow-up of audit issues,

However, the report on follow-up of audit issues was later prepared and submitted to the
auditor for review.

Commirtee Observation

The Committee observed thal the Fund Account Manager later prepared and submitted
the report on follow-up of audit recommendations to the auditors for review. The query
was satisfaciarily addressed

Conumittee Recommendations
The Committee recommendys theal:

(i} The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Managers:-

a) keeps financial and accounting records that are accurate, reliable, and complete

b adhere 1o accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board (PSASB) as provided by Section 8173) of the PFM Act, No. 18 of
2002, which provides that *The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial
staterents in a form that complies with the relevant accounting standards
prescribed and published by the Accounting Standards Board from time to
fime.’

cl adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Aot (National Government), 2015, whick
provides that “Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with
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receiving cash or making paymenis a cash book showing the receipts and
payments and shall maintain such other books and registers as may be
necessary for the proper mainfenance and production of the accounts of the
Varte for which he or she is responsible’ and

dl adhere to Regulation 10174} of the PFM Act (National Governmeni), 2015 which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Sorm that complies with the relevant accounting standards prescribed by the
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, ot later
than three months affer the end of the finoncial yvear and swhmit them o
the Auditor General with a copy to the County Treasury, the Controller
of Budget and the National Treasury.’

The NG-CDF Board engages the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSASB)
to conduct continwous capacity building on financial reporting standavds for all NG-
CDF constituency staff

2.0 Irregular Re-Allocation of Funds

The CDF Management disbursed Kshs. 800,000/= to Evojo Secondary School for the
purchase of two acres of land. However, the funds were transferred to Evojo Primary
School for the construction of two toilets and two classrooms. Further, Kshs, 1,500,000/=
disbursed to Bugina Secondary School for installment payment of the purchase of a 52-
seater school bus was spent on the construction of a dining hall.

No authority or approval by the Board was given for these reallocations as required by
National Government Constituencies Development Fund Act, 2015.

Response by the Fund Aceount Manager

Evojo Secondary School had just started, and it was still under the management of Evojo
primary school, which was managing the funds for both institutions, Kshs, 800,000 sent to
Evojo Secondary School for the purchase of 2 acres was spent by the project management
committee to construct two toilets and classrooms at Evojo Primary as the school had a
dire need for the infrastructure {toilets and classrooms). The completion certificates for
the project were availed to the auditor for verification.

. Kshs. 1,500,000 which was an instalment payment for a 52-seater bus, was used to fund

the dining hall as the school had a need due to the increase in the number of students and
since the funds were not enough at the time to purchase the school bus,

However, the constituency has considered the need to follow due process in reallocating

Fund for projects and has endeavored to always seek permission before reallocating funds
for project activities.
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Committee Observation

9. The Commintee observed thar the Fund Account Manager provided a sotisfactory

o7.

98.

0%,

R1113

explanation. The query way savisfaciorily addressed

Cammittee Recommendations

The Committee recommends that the National Government Constituencies Development
Fund Board ensures that the Fund Account Managers comply with provisions of sections
6(2) and section 8 of the National Governmewnt Constituencies Develapment Fund Aci,
2015 which provides that:

i) Section 672) *Once funds are allocated for a particular project, they shall remain
allecated for that project and may only be re-allocated for any other purpose
during the financial year with the approval of the Board™ and

(i) Section & (1) A partion of the Fund, equivalent to five per centum (hereinafter
referred to as the "Emergency Reserve”) shall remain unallocated and shall be
available for emergencies that may occur within the Constituency;

(2) “The Constituency Committee shall determine the allecation of the
emergency reserve in accordance with the Act™; anid

(3) "Emergency” shall be construed to mean an urgent, unforeseen need for
expenditure for which it is in the opinfon of the committee that it cannot be
defayed until the next financial year withowt harming the public interest of the
constituents.

3.0 Irregular Purchase of Land

The Fund disbursed Kshs. 1,000,000 to St. Ursula Chamakanga Girls High School for the
purchase of two (2) acres of land. However, the following unsatisfactorily matters were
noted:

(1) The seller was paid Kshs. 1,000,000 before entering into an agreement with the
school.

(i}  Official search from Ministry of Land, the Government surveyor report and
valuation report were not availed for audit review.

(iii)  The title deed for the land was not provided.

In the circumstances, it was not clear how the seller was paid for the land in the absence
of all the required documents.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

Kshs. 1,000,000 was used for the purchase of land at St. Ursula Chamakanga Girls® High
School and due process was followed. The documents for the purchase of land were at the
school during the time of audit and were submitted to the auditor for review.
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102,

103.

105.

Commifiee Chservario

The Commiitee observed that the Fund Accownmi Manager provided a salisfactory
explanation. The query was satisfactorily addressed.

4.0 Unvouched Expenditure

The Fund made payments totalling Kshs. 7,150,687 with respect to committee allowances
{administration), Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) and office and general supplies and
services. However, the payments were not supported with relevant documents, including
payment vouchers.

Consequently, it was not possible 1o ascertain the propriety of the expenditure.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

. The Constituency incurred an expenditure of Kshs 7,150,687 for committee expenses,

monitoring and evaluation and office and general supplies. The payment vouchers
supporting the expenditure were availed to the auditor for verification,

Commitiee Observaiion

The Commitiee observed thai this matter arose due (o failure to submit relevant support
documenis during the audit period.

Commitiee Recommendation

106, The Commitiee recommends that the Accounting Officer ensures that afl Fund Account

Managers comply with the provisions of Sections 62 (1) (b} and c) of the Public Audi
Aci, No.34 af 2015 which provides tha -

“{1) A person shall not— (b) without justification, fail to provide information required

wnder this Act and (c) without justification, fail to provide information within
reasonable time that is required under this Acr”,
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OTHER MATTERS

1.0 Budget Control and Performance

|07. The fund budget receipts of Kshs. 80,668,712, including Kshs. 30,668712 brought
torward from 2014/15. However, the actual expenditure was Kshs. 76,869,309 resulting
in an under expenditure of 3,799,403,

108, Consequently, the Fund did not operate within the approved budget.

Response by the Fund Account Manager
109. Kshs. 3,799,403 was the cashbook balance as at 30°" June, 2015. The under absorption of
funds was occasioned by the delayed dishbursement of funds from the exchequer.

Committee Ohservation
The Cammittee observed that the AIEs for prior years proving delay in the disbursement of funds
were gvailed and verified by the Office of the Auditor Generl.

Committee Recommendation

110. The Committee recommends that the National Treasury should ensure timely and
adequate dishursement of fumds to the National Gavernment Constituencies Development
Fund Board for immediate velease to the Constituencies.

2.0 Project Analysis

111. The CDF management had approved a plan to implement 49 projects valued at
44,500,000, —however 40, projects valued at Kshs. 35400000 were not started, 6
projects valued at 6,700,000 were ongoing and only 3 projects valued at Kshs. 2,400,000
were completed. In view of the foregoing the Fund did not deliver the expected services
to the constituency and therefore did not achieve its development objectives.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

112. The delayed implementation of projects was due to the late release of funds from the ex-
chequer, thus affecting the service delivery at the constituency. However, the projects
were completed in the subsequent financial yvear when funds were received.
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Comenittee Observation
The Committes ohserved that: -

The query arose due to due to the late release of funds from the ex-chequer and also
non-provision of adequate documents and explanation by the Fund Account Manager.
However, the documents and explanations were provided and verified by the Office of the
Auditor General. The guery was adequately addressed and resolved.

Cammittee Recommendation

114, The Committee recommends that;-

il

The Narional Treasury should ensure timely release of funds to enable implementation
of projects approved by the NG-CDF Board,

The Fund Account Maragers comply with the provisions af Sections 62 (1) (b) and (c)
of the Public Audit Act, No 34 of 2005 which provides that — *(1) A person shall
not— (b) without justification, fail te provide information required under this Act
and (c) without justification, fail to provide information within reasonable fime that
is required under this Ace.™
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REPORTS ON THE AUDITED ACCOUNTS OF HAMISI CONSTITUENCY NG-
CDF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS 2013/2014, 2014/2015 AND 201572016

HAMISI CONSTITUENCY

[13.Mr. Silverius M. Wakoli, the former Fund Account Manager appeared before the
Committee on 3rd May 2023 to respond to the audit matters raised in the report of the
Auditor General for Hamisi Constituency for the financial vears 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and
2015/2016.

FINANCIAL YEAR 2013/2014

1.0 Under Expenditure

116.Hamisi CDF had an approved budget of Kshs, 127.866.041.15 for the vear ended 30" June,
2014. However, the Fund spent Kshs. 84.435119.65 against a budget of Kshs.
127,866,041.15 resulting in an unexplained under-expenditure of Kshs, 43,430,922.50,
approximately 34% of the total budget, The low budget absorption denied the constituents
the required and planned service delivery,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

I17.The under-expenditure resulted from the late disbursement of funds from the Board. The
constituency received Kshs. 40,341,399.00 for the financial vear 2013/2014 on 24" June,
2014, which was at the close of the financial year. AIE No. 750123 of Kshs. 40,341,399.00,
CDF, Committee minutes approving the payments and completion certificates were
submitied to the auditors for review. A balance of Kshs. 3,089,523.50 was the amount in the
cashbook at the end of the financial year meant for the recurrent expenditure (Salaries,
office running, members allowances)

Comunittee Qbservations

1 18.The Committee observed thai: -
(i} Under absorption of funds was occavioned by the late disbursemens of funds by the
Board. The funds were, however, dishursed days before the closure of the financial
year,
(i) AIE's, CDF committee minutes approving the pavments and completion certificates
were submited o the Office of the Auditor General for verification.

Committee Recommendation
The Commitiee recommends that:-

119.The National Treasury shall ensure timely and adeguate dishursement of funds to the
National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board for immediate release 1o the
Constituencies.
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2.0 Going Concern

120.The High Court of Kenya, in its ruling on Petition 71 of 2013, held that the constituencies
Development Fund Act, 2013, establishing the Constituency Development Fund since the

enactment of the Constitution of Kenya 2010, was unconstitutional, rendering the existence
of the Fund illegal.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

121.The ongoing concem of CDF was resolved by enactment of the NG-CDF Aet, 2015 and its
regulations, thus aligning its functions under the National Government.

Cammitiee Qhservatinons
The Commitiee ohyerved -
122.The Commitiee observed thal eveniy overtook the ssue as it way addressed through the

passing of the NG-CDF Aci, 2015 and its Regulations 2016 which aligned the fund

Sunctions o the National Governmment functions. The query was adequately addressed and
resolved.
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FINANCIAL YEAR 2014/2015

1.0 Unsupported Purchase of Land

123, The Fund purchased land for the construction of Jeptulu Police Post and Givigoi
dispensary at a cost of Kshs. 1,730,000.00 and Kshs. 740,000.00 respectively, However,
the land ownership documents were not made available for audit review,

124, Consequently, the ownership of the two parcels of land could not be verified as at 30"

Jume 2013,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

125, The ownership documents for Givigoi Dispensary and Jeptulu Police post were obtained.
and copies of sampled valuation report, title deeds and sale agreement were submitted to
the auditors.

Comnmittee Obyervations

The Committee made the following observations:

L This was an issue of documents not being produced during audit period.
ii.  The title deed, valuation report, and the sale agreement were later subminted and
verified by the Office of the Auditor General,

Committee Recommendation

The Committee recommends that the Accounting Officer should ensure that Fund Account
Managers comply with the provisions of Sections 62 (1) (b) and (c) of the Public Audit
Act, No.34 of 2015 which provides that - “(1) A person shall not— (b) without
Justification, fail wo provide information required under this Act and (c) without
Jjustification, fail 1o provide information within reasonable time that is required under this
Act.

2.0 Unimplemented Projects

126, Dwuring the year. the Fund planned to implement 121 projects. However, it failed to
implement 43 projects valued at Kshs. 36,937,931.00 that were to be undertaken within
the financial year though 36 projects were ongoing.

127.  In the circumstances, it is not clear, and the fund management has not explained how the
backlog of projects will be completed for the benefit of the Constituents.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

128. Although the projects had not begun, the funds had already been disbursed to the PMCs,
and the implementation was under tendering process. The projects were later fully
implemented within the financial vear.
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Commiitee hservaiion

The Committee observed that:

Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor General, it was noted that the
projects were completed and were in use. The query was adequately addressed and
resolved.

3.0 Budgetary Control and Performance

129. Hamisi CDF had an approved budget of Kshs. 159,713,908.50 for the year ended 30"
June 2015, However, the Fund spent Kshs. 116,019.719.45 resulting in an overall under-
expenditure of Kshs. 43,694,189.05, approximately 27% of the total budget. The under-
expenditure was due to the unutilized previous year's budget carried forward of Kshs.
43,428.303.35. The Fund, therefore, failed to meet its budget objectives and deliver the
planned and provide service to the constituents.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

130. The under-expenditure resulted from the delay in disbursement of funds from the National
Board. The final disbursement of Kshs. 40,699,045.00 for the FY 2014/2015 on AIE No,
ATI6095 was disbursed to the Constituency on 29" June 2013, which was later utilized in
the FY 2015/2016. A copy of the AIE No. AT96095 of Kshs. 40,699,045.00, CDFC
minutes approving payments and completion certificates were availed to the auditor,

131. The difference of Kshs. 2,9935,144.05 was the amount in the cash book at the end of the
financial year, which was for recurrent expenditure and was later utilized in the
subsequent financial year,

Commitice Qbservations
132, The Committee phyerved that -

(i} The query resulted from the late disbursement of funds by the NG-CDF Board
fic) It was established that the final disbursement of Kshs, 40699, 045.00 for the FY
201472015 on AIE No. AT96095 was dishursed to the Constituency on 29" June
2013, which was later utilized in the FY 2015/2016; and
fiity A copy of the AIE No. A796095 of Kshs. 40,699,043.00, CDFC mimies approving
payments and completion certificates were submitred 1o the auditar for review,

Commitiee Recommendation

133, The Committee recommends that the NG-CDF Board shall ensure timely disbursement of
Sunels o the Constituencies.
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FINANCIAL YEAR 20152016

1.0 Presentation and Com pleteness of Financial Statements

The Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of the Mational Treasury requires the
management 1o include the action taken on the previous year's auditor’s
recommendations. In the vear 20142015, Hamisi CDF had a qualified opinion. However,
there was no report in the financial statements for the year under review.

In the circumstances, the presentation of the financial statements was not in conformity
with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (cash basis) as
prescribed by the Board.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

During the preparation of the financial statement the Constituency had not received the
report on Audit issues raised by the auditor thus could not include the issues in the
financial statement.

However, the report on issues raised by auditor were later prepared and availed for
review.

Commirtee Observations

The Commiitee observed that,

fiy The Fund Accouwnt Manager admitied the omission of the report on follow-up of
audil issues raised in the previous year.,

(i) The Fund Account Manager later prepared the report and availed to the auditor
Jfor review.

Commintee Recommendations

The Commitiee recommends thai;

(i) The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Managers: -
al Keep financial and other accounting records that are accuraie, reliable, and complete.

b} Adhere 1o aecounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards

Board (PSASB) as provided by Section 81{3) of the PFM Aet, No. 18 of 2012, which
provides that *The Accounting Officer shall prepuare the financial statements in a form
that complies with the relevant Accounting Standards
prescribed  and  published by the Accounting  Standards  Board  from
time 1o time."
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¢} Adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Act (National Government), 2045 which provides
that ‘Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with receiving cash or
making payments i cash Book slawing the receipis
and  payments and shall maintain such other books and registers as may
be mecessary for the proper maintemance and production of the accounts
aof the Vote for which he or she is responsible’ and

d) Adhere to Regulation 101(4) of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015 which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shail prepare the financial statements in a form
that complies with the relevant accounting standarids
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, not later
than three maonths after the end of the financial year and submit them ro
the Auwditor General with a copy to the Coumty Treasury, the Controller
of Budget and the National Treasury.”

fiil  The NG-CDF Board should engage the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
(PSASE) to conduct continuous capacity bwilding on financial reporting standards for
all NG-CDF constituency staff.

1.0 Budgetary Control and Performance

140. The Fund budget receipts was Kshs. 166,993,149 including Kshs. 43,694,189 brought
forward from 2014/2015. However, actual receipts amounted Kshs. 116,466,352, Further,
the Fund underspent on all five components — compensation of employees, use of goods
and services, transfer to other government units, other grants and transfers and did not
procure any additional assets during the vear.

141. Consequently, the Fund did not operate within the approved budget, which might have
negatively impacted service delivery to the constituents,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

142.  The under-expenditure resulted from the late disbursement of funds from the exchequer.
The final disbursement was received on 27" June 2016 on AIE No. AB25724 of Kshs.
61,298,960.00, which was at the close of the financial vear. The funds were later fully
utilized per the approved financial vear 2016/2017 budget.

Commifiee Qhservafions

143. The Commirtee ohserved thal: -

(i} The under absorption of the funds was due to late disbursement of funds by the
exchegquer.

fiiy  The profects were implemented in the subsequent financial year as budgeted

fite) The explanation by the Fund Account Manager was satisfactory; and
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{iv)] The Fund Account Manager submitted a copy of AIE No. 825724 of Kshs.
61,298 960.00 dated 27" June 2016, minutes approving paymenis and the
completion certificates.

Comminee Becommendation

152, The Commitiee recommends thar the National Treaswry should ensure timely

153.

|54,

133.

disbursement of funds fo the National Government Constituencies Development Fund
Board for immediare release ta the constituencies.

3.0 Project Implementation Status

The management had approved a plan to implement a total of 296 projects. However, only
219 projects valued at kshs, 142 465,702 were completed, and 77 projects valued at Kshs.
107,055,329 were ongoing,

In view of the foregoing, the Fund did not deliver the expected services to the constituents
and therefore did not achieve its development objectives.
Response by the Fund Account Manager

The 77 ongoing Projects were later completed within the financial year.

Comemitice QObservation

The Committee observed thar:-

Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor General, it was noted that the
projects were completed and were in use. The project implementation status (PIS) report

highlighting the 77 ongoing projects was availed to the Auditors for review and
verification. The query was adequately addressed and resolved.
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159,

160,

lal.

l62.

REPFPORTS ON THE AUDITED ACCOUNTS OF EMUHAYA CONSTITUENCY
NG- CDF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS 2013/2014, 2014/2015 AND 2015/2016

ENMUHAYA CONSTITUENCY

The Fund Account Manager, Mr. Paul Charles Mogendi, appeared before the Committee
on 3™ May 2023, to respond to the audit matters raised in the report of the Auditor
General for Emuhaya Constituency for the financial years 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and
2015/2016.

FINANCIAL YEAR 201372014

L0 Accuracy and Completeness of the Financial Statements

The general ledgers from which the financial statements were to be prepared were not
maintained. In addition, the cash, and cash equivalent balance of Kshs. 7,627,541.25 was
not supported by note 12 and 14, which accumulatively show kshs.B 568,700.05. The
resulting difference of kshs,947,257 80 was not explained.

Consequently, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements for the year
ended 30/06/2014 could not be confirmed as at 30" June, 2014,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

The Constituency maintains an annual expenditure return which serves as a ledger and the
basis from which the financial statements are prepared. However, the constituency had
maintained schedules extracted from the annual expenditure return, which were availed to
the auditor for review.

Ksh. 7,621,541.25 was the cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the financial year
which comprises of the cashbook closing balance of Ksh. 6,974,283.45 and the
outstanding imprest of Ksh. 647.257.80. There was an error in note 12 to the financial
statement, which reflected the cash and cash equivalent instead of the cashbook closing
balance. The notes to the financial statements were amended to reflect the correct
position.

Cormnittee Observation

The Comniittee observed that the Fund Account manager submitied to the Office of the
Auditor General the amended financial statements. The query was adequately addressed
and resolved.

Comimittee Recommendations

The Commitiee recomimends thar;
i) The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Managers;
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164,

163,

al Keep financial and other accounting records that are accurate, reliable, and
complete.

hi Adhere to accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standeards
Board (PSASB) as provided by Section 81¢3) af the PFM Aet, No. 18 of 2012, which
provides that ‘The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Sorm  that  complies  with  the  relevant  accounting  standards

prescribed  and  published by the  Accounting  Standards  Board  from
fime fo fime.”

c) Adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015, which
provides that ‘Acceunting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with receiving
cash or  making paymenis  a  cash  book  showing the  receipis
and payments and shall maintain such other books and registers as may
be necessary  for the proper mainfenance and prodeciion of the  accouanfs
of the Vote for which he or she is responsible” and

d) Adhere te Regulation 10174} of the PFM Act (Natioral Governmeni), 2013, which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial stutements in a
furm fhar complies Wil fire refevany CCHing standards
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, not later
than three months after the end of the financial year and submit them to

the Awditor General with o copy fe the Coanfy Treasury, the Confroller
i Brdget and the Nafionad Treasary, '

fti} ~ The NG-CDF Board should engage the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
(PSASE) 1o eonduct continuous capacity building on financial reporting standards for
all NG-CDF constitwency staff.

2.0 Acquisition of Fixed Assets

Note 18.1 of the financial statement under the fixed asset register did not include motor
vehicle and other transport equipment procured during the year 2013/2014 amounting to
kshs.3.640,520.00.

Further, included in the fixed asset register was the land for Emuhaya DC'S office,
Ebunangwe High School, magistrate’s court, whose ownership documents were nat

provided,

As a result, the accuracy and ownership of the fixed assets could not be wholly confirmed
as at 30/06/2014.
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Response by the Fund Account Manager

|66. The Fixed Asset Register was updated to reflect the correct position by including the
motor vehicle in the asset register, As at the time of audit, the title deeds for Emuhaya
DC'S office (land purchased was meant for the construction of District Commissioner’s
residential house), Ebunangwe High School and the Magisirate’s Court (land acquired for
purposes of constructing a magistrate’s court in Emuhaya) were not ready. However, the
title deeds were acquired and availed to the auditors for review.

Caommitiee Observationy

167,  The Commitiee made the following observations:
i This was an issue aof documents not being produced during audit period.
il. The title deeds were later acquired and availed to the auditors for review,

Commiittee Recommendation

168. The Committee recommends that the Accounting Officer should:

Comply with the provisions of Sections 62 (1) (b) and (g) of the Public Audit Act, No. 34 af
2015 which provides that — *(1) A person shall noi— (b) withowt justification, fail to
provide information reguired under this Act and (c) without justification, fail to provide
information within reasonable time that is required under this Act.

3.0 Procurement of a Motor Vehicle and OfTice Chairs

| 69.During the year under review, the Fund procured a motor vehicle and office chairs valued at
the cost of kshs.3,640,520.00 and kshs.360,000.00 respectively. However, procurement
documents were not made available for audit review. Consequently, it was not possible to
confirm whether the items were procured competitively and in accordance with Public
Procurement and Disposal Act, 2005 and Regulation, 2006.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

[70.The Public Procurement and Disposal Act 2005 and Regulations 2006 were adhered to
while procuring the office vehicle (GKB 466F) and office chairs. The procurement
documents were later submitted to the auditor for review.

Catrnifiee Observaiion

171, The Committee observed that the guery arose because documents were nol submitted
during the audit period, The procurement documents were, however, later submitted ta
the auditor for review.

Commitiee Recommendation
172, The Accounting Officer showld enswre that the Fund Account Managers comply with the

pravisions af Section 45 of the Public Procurement and Disposal Act 2005 and Sections
62 (1) b} and ic) of the Public Audit Act, No.34 of 2013 which provides thev:-
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i.  Section 45 of the Public Procuremeni and Disposal Act 2005 - (1) A procuring entity
shall keep records for each procurement for ar least six pears after the resulting
contract was enfered infe or, if no contract resulted, after the procurement
proceedings were terminated. (2) The records for a procurement must include — {a)
a brief description of the goods, works or services being procured.”’

il.  Sections 62 (1) (b) and (c} of the Public Audit Act, No.34 of 2015 - “(I}) A person
shall not— (b) without justification, fail to provide information required under this
Act and (o) without justification, fuil to provide information within reasonable fime
that is required under this Act.

4.0 Unsupported Capital Projects

173. Project records and supporting documents in respect of construction works at Esirulo
dispensary valued at kshs.300, 000,00 and Emuhaya District Hospital amounting to
kshs.1.021.570.00 were not provided for audit scrutiny.

174, As a result, it was not been possible to ascertain whether the expenditure of kshs.1,

521,570.00 was spent for the imended purpose and was properly accounted for as at 30
June, 2014,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

175, At the time of audit, Esirulo Dispensary had not submitted its projeet expenditure returns
and Emuhaya district hospital documents could not be located at the Sub-County Offices.
However, they later submitted to the auditor for review.

Commiifee Observaiion

176. The Committee observed that at the time of audit, expenditure returns from Esirulo
dispensary and documenis for Emuhaya district hospital were not submisted to the Office of
the Awditor General for review, However, the documents were later submitted

Corunitiee Observarions
177, The Commitice made the following observations:-

i This was a cave where management foiled to provide documents for audit within the
statutory timelines. However, the necessary documents were later availed and
verified by the Office of the Auditor General, thereby resolving the maiter.

if. This was a case of poor record keeping.

Commitice Recommendations
178, The Commitee recommends that -

i) The Accounting Officer ensures that all Fund Account Managers comply with the
provisions of Sections 6.2 (1) (b) and fcf of the Public Audit Act, No.34 of 2015 which
provides that — (1) A persan shall not— (b) withowt justification, fuail to provide
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information required under this Act and {c) withowt fustification, fail to provide
information within reasonable time that is required wnder this Act and Seciion
68(2)(k) of the Public Finance Management Act, No. I8 of 2012 which provides that
“12) In the performuance of a function under subsection (1), an accounting afficer
shali—k) prepare annaal financiol stafemenis for each financial year within three
months after the end of the financial year, and submit them to the Controller of
Budger and the Audifor-General for audit, and in the case of o naffonal govermnment
entity, forward a copy to the National Treasury™ on the timely submission of
documents.

fii) The Commitiee recomumends thar the Accounting Officer ensures that the Fund
Account Managers maintain proper records of each profect. which include project
refurns, tender documents, payment and completion certificates, bill of quantities and
project designs. confracts, membership of the Project Management Commirtees,
project minuies and procurement documents and a duplicate file 1o be maintained by
the Profect Management Commitiee.
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OTHER MATTERS
1.0 Going Concern Status

179.The High Court of Kenya, in its ruling on petition 71 of 2013 held that the Constituencies
Development Fund Act, 2013, establishing the Constituencies Development Fund was
unconstitutional, rendering the existence of the Fund illegal. As a result, the going concern
status of the Emuhaya Constituency Development Fund was doubtful.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

180.The Fund operated under the Constituencies Development Fund Act 2013 until the
enactment of the National Government Constituencies Development Fund Act 2013, which
aligned the functions of the NG-CDF to the National Government functions,

Commirtee Qbservation

181.The Committee observed that the issue was overtaken by events as it way addressed through
the passing of the NG-CDF Act, 2013 and its Regulations 2016, which aligned the fund
functions to the National Government functions. The guery was adequately addressed and
resolved

2.0 Under Expenditure

182 Emuhaya CDF had an approved budget of Kshs. 77,937337.10 for the year ended 30 June
2014. However, the Fund spent kshs.70,313,795.85 against the approved budget of
77.937.337.10, resulting in unexpiained under-expenditure of Kshs.7,621,541.25,
approximately 10% of the total budget. The low budget absorption denied the constituency
much-needed service delivery.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

183.The under-expenditure was occasioned by the late release of funds by the exchequer.
However, the projects were later funded in the subsequent financial year and completed. A
copy of the bank statement, AlEs and completion certificates were provided to the auditor
for review.

Cammittee abservation

|84, Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor General, it way established
that:

i, the under expenditure was occasioned by the late disbursement of funds by the
National Treasury.
i, the projects were implemented in the subsequent year, and they are in use.
iii. copy of the bank statement, AIEs and completion certificates were provided to the
cuditors for review and verification.
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Commitiee Recommendaiion

185, The Committee recommends the National Treaswry should ensure timely and adeguaie
dishursement of funds to the Navional Government Constituencies Development Fund
Board for immediate release to the Constituencies.

3.0 Unapproved Reallocation of Funds

186.During the vear, the Fund reallocated funds totalling to Kshs 3,519.801.00 from emergency
projects to hire a dozer, bursary, and printing newsletter without approval by CDF Board as
required. In the circumstance, the Fund denied the constituents the planned and promised
service delivery worth Kshs, 3,519,801.00 as at 30/06/2014.

Response by Fund Account Manager

I87.0ut of Ksh.3,519,801.00, Ksh.570,000.00 was wsed to  print newsletters and
Ksh.410.154.00 was used 1o complete an ongoing road project. These were the only funds
used under the emergency vote head. The balance of Ksh. 1,227,356 was used to pay
bursaries through bursary vote, which was wrongly classified as paid through the emergency
vote. Ksh.912,291 was paid through the roads allocation for the year, but the project was not
completed, leading to an additional Ksh. 410,154.00 for completion.

I88.The payment vouchers and supporting schedules were availed to the auditor for review.

Committee (bservations
The Commitiee observed thar: -

(i) The Fund Account Manager spent ksh.370000.00 to print newslewters and

Ksh.410,154.00 to complete a road project withowr seeking approval from the Board,

(it The Fund Aceount Manager claimed that a balance of Kxh. 1,227,336 was used to pay
bursaries through the bursary vote and was wrongly classified as paid through the
emergency vole,

(i} Further verification by the Office of the Auditor General of the documents provided
indicated that only Kshs. 1,380,154 was reallocated without approval from the
NGCDF Board (the balance of Kshs.2,139,647 was supported),

Commirtee Recommendations

189. The Committee Recommends that the National Government Constituencies Develapment
Fund Board should ensure thar the Fund Account Managers comply with provisions of
section 6(2) and section 8 of the National Governmeni Canstituencies Development Fund
Act, 2015 which provides that:-

a) Section 6(2) "Once funds are allocated for a particular project, they shall remain
allecated for that project and may only be re-allocated for any other purpose during
the financial year with the approval of the Board.” and-



b) Section 8 "(1) A portion of the Fund, equivalent te five per centum (hereinafter
referred to as the "Emergency Reserve') shall remain unallocated and shall be
available for emergencies that may occur within the Constituency; (2) The
Constituency Committee shall determine the allocation of the emergency reserve in
accordance with the Act qand  (3) "Emergency”™ shall be constfrued fo mean an
urgent, unforeseen need for expenditure for which it is in the opinion of the
Committee that it cannot be delayed wuntil the next financial year without harming
the public interest of the constituents"
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FINANCIAL YEAR 2014/2015

1.0 Accuracy, Completeness, and Presentation of the Financial Statements

According to the international Public Sector Accounting Standards (cash Basis) financial
statements presentation format prescribed by the National Treasury management is
required to include the action taken on the previous years' auditors’ recommendations. In
the year 20132014, Emuhaya CDF had a qualified opinion report, However, no report on
the progress on follow-up of audit issues raised was included in the financial statements
for the year under review. The presentation of the financial statements was not in
conformity with the IPSAS (Cash Basis) as prescribed by the National Treasury and in
accordance with the public Finance Management Act, 2012.

In view of the foregoing, the accuracy, completeness, and presentation of the financial
statements for the vear ended 30 June 20135 could not be confirmed.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

As at the time of preparation of the financial statements, the constituency had not received
the final certificate for the financial vear 2013/2014 and hence did not include the report
on progress on follow-up of audit recommendations. However, the report on follow-up of
audit recommendations was later prepared and availed 1o the auditors for review.

Commitfee QObservation
The Commitiee ohserved thai the Fund Accownt Manager later submitied the report on
follow-up of audit recommendations to the auditors for review, The query was
satisfaciorily addressed

Commiifee Recommendations

The Commitiee recommends that:
(i) The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Managers:

al keep financial and other accounting records that are accurate, reliable, and complere,

b} Adhere to accouniing standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board (PSASB) as provided by Secrion 81(3) of the PFM Aet, No. 18 of 2012 which
provides that ‘The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Jorm  that  complies  with  the  relevant  accounting  standards
prescribed  and  published by the Accounting Standards  Board  from
time to fime.'

¢) Adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Act (National Govermment), 2015 which
provides that “Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with receiving
cash or making payments a cash book showing the receipts
and payments and shall maintain such other books and registers as may
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be necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accoumts
af the Vote for which he or she is responsible” and

d) Adhere to Regulation 101{4) of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015 which

provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Suorim Hhat cermplies Wit the relevant aCCounting standlaras
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, net  later
thane three months after the end of the financial year and swbmit them o
the Awditor General with a copy te the County Treasury, the Controller

of Budger and the National Treasury'

(ti) The NG-CDF Board showld engage the Public Sector Accownting Standardy Board

(PSASE} to conduct continuous capacity building on financial reporting standards
for all NG-CDF constituency staff.

2.0 Budgetary Control and Performance

195.The Fund approved budget was Kshs.155, 153,113.00 but spent Kshs. 106, 425,246.00
resulting in under expenditure of Kshs.48, 727.867.00 or budget utilization of 69% as shown

As5Cts

below,

ltems Current  year | Current vear | variance e of
approved actual figures utilization
budget

Compensation | 2,343,208 1,962,770 (380,438) B4%%

of employees

Use of goods |2 869440 2,869,440 = [ 00%

| and services

Committee 2,662,110 2,662,110 - 00

expenses

Transfers to | 66,821,807 43 865,269 (22,956,538) 66%

other :

government E

units |

Other grants | 72,947,300 50,055,405 (22,891,895) 69%

and transfers

Social Security | 43,200 19,600 {23,600) 45%

benefits

Acquisition of | 1,780,800 1,780,00 - 10:0%
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Other payments | 5,685,248 3,209 852 (2,475,396) (9%

Total 155,153,113 106,425,246 (48,727.867) 692
payments

196.Further, the Fund received Kshs. 77,685,008.00 in the year against the total allocation of
Kshs, 103,580,130.00, resulting in an undisbursed budget allocation of Kshs.25,895,033.00
Consequently, the budget targets were not met, and various projects budgeted for were not
implemented within the financial vear, impacting negatively on service delivery.

Response from the Fund Account Manager

197.0ut of a total allocation of Kshs. 103, 580,130,000 only Kshs.77, 685.097.50 was received.
Therefore, by end of the FY, Emuhaya CDF had not received Kshs.25, §96,032.50. Thus,
the NGCDFC could not utilize or absorb all the funds within the financial vear as planned
due to the late disbursement of funds from the exchequer.

198.The various projects were undertaken in the subseguent financial year after the receipt of the
funds. AIE’s & Bank Statements were submitted to the auditors for review.

Commitiee abservarions

199. Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor General, it was established
that:

i the under expenditure was occasioned by the late dishursement of funds by
the National Treasury.
il,  the projects were implemenied in the subsequent vear, and they are in use
iii.  evidence af physical existence and photos of the prajects were availed to the
auditors for review and verification
iv.  copy of the bank statement, AIEs and completion certificates were provided
o the auditors for review and verification.

Cammittee Recommendation

200. The Commitice recammends that the National Treasury should ensure timely and adequate
dishursement of funds fo the National Government Constituencies Development Fund
Board for immediate release to the Constituencies,

3.0 Unimplemented Projects

201 .During the year, the Fund budgeted to implement one hundred and eighteen (118) projects
worth Kshs. 103, 580,130.00. However, the Fund had not commenced the implementation
of various projects amounting to kshs.22, 832,834.00 that were to be done within the
financial year as shown below.
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Sector Total project | Actual/implemented projects
cost
Not ongoing | completed | total Y% of
started com pleted
projects
Primary 9,950,000 10 - 19 29 66%
schools
Secondary | 35,227,392 - 4 40 44 91%
prajects
Tertiary 18,000,000 1 1 1 3 33%
Environm | 500,000 | - 1 2 500
enl
Cdfoffice | 17,486,447 2 - 11 13 85%
security 8,600,000 3 3 1 7 14%
Sports 1,963,597 - - 1 | 100%
Health 1,850,000 1 2 2 5 40%
Roads 10,002,694 - - 14 14 100%
Total 103,580,130 15 10 90 118 T6%

Response by Fund Account Manager

202. The Constituency did not receive all funds for the financial vear 2014/2015 and hence did
not implement all the projects. However, the projects were implemented in the subsequent
financial year to completion. The completion certificates for the projects were availed to

the auditors for review.

Conmmitice Observation
203. Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor Gereral, it was established

the,

i. Fund didn’t commence the implementation of various projects because of the late

dishursement of funds by the Navional Treasury.

ii. the projects were however later implemenied to completion in the subsequent

year, and they are i use,

fii. evidence of physical existence and photos of the projects were availed to the

cuditory for review and verification.
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iv. capy of the bank siatement, AIEs and completion certificates were provided fo the
auditors for review and verification.

Commiriee Recommendation

204. The Committee recommends that the National Treasury should ensure timely disbursement

205,

206.

207.

of funds o the National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board for

immediale release o the consiitiencies.

4.0 Renovation of Classrooms in Kilingili Secondary School

A total of Kshs.837, 931.00 was disbursed to Kilingili Secondary School for the
renovation of classrooms. However, physical verification conducted on 3™ March 2016
revealed that the renovation of classrooms was poorly done in that the re-painted walls
and the floor which was re-done had already peeled off, and the grill doors re-placed
appeared weak and of poor quality since some had already broken. As a result, the Fund
did not get value for money spent on the renovation of classrooms.

Response by Fund Account Manager

At the time of audit, there were defects in the renovated classrooms, as had been observed
by the auditor. The works officer had issued a notice to the contractor to correct the
defects. However, the defects had not been corrected by the time of the audit. The defects
were later corrected, and the works officer certified the works by issuing the completion
certificate on 10/01/2017. It was availed to the auditor Tor verification,

Conmpmiftee abservations

Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor General, it was established
that:

i.  the defects were correcied.
il. evidence of physical existence and photos of the praject were availed to the
auditors for review and verification,
ifi.  the Public Warks afficer certified the works and issued the completion certificate
that was submitied to the auditors for review and verification.
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FINANCIAL YEAR 2015/2016
1.0 Accuracy, Completeness, and Presentation of the Financial Statements.

The National Treasury Public Sector Accounting Standards Board prescribes that
management should include the action taken on the previous year's auditors’
recommendations. In the year 2014/2015, Emuhaya CDF had an adverse Audil opinion.
However, the report on the follow-up of the issues raised in the audit report has not been
included in the financial statements for the vear under review as required.

In the circumstances, the management was in breach of National Treasury regulations.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

They had not received the Audit certificate at the time when they were preparing the
financial statements. However, the report on the follow-up of audit issues was later
prepared and presented to the auditor for verification,

Comnitree Observarion

The Commitiee observed that the Fund Accoum Manager later submitted the report on
Jollow-up of audit issues for verification to the Office of the Auditor General. The guery
wars sarisfocrarily addressed.

Commmitice Recommendation

The Committee recommends that

(i} The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Managers:

a) Keeps financial and other accounting records that are accurate, reliable, and
complete.

h) Adhere to accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board (PSASE) ax provided by Section 81(3) of the PFM Act, No. 18 of 2012 which
provides that ‘The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
form  thai  complies  with  the  relevamt  accounting  standards
prescribed  and  published by the Accounting Standurds  Board  from
fime fo timme*

¢) Adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Act National Government), 2003 which
provides that *Accounting Qfficers shall keep in all offices concerned with receiving
cash or  making papments a  cash  book  showing  the  receiprs
and  payments amd shall maintain such other books and registers as  may
be necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accounts
af the Vote for which he or she is responsible’ and
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213.

214,

213,

216.

d) Adhere to Regularion 10114) of the PFM Act (National Government), 2013 which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statemenis in a
form  that  complies  with  the  relevant  accounting  standards
jpreseribed by the  Public Nector  Accounting  Standards  Board, not foter
than three months after the end of the financial year and submir them to
the Auditor General with a copy to the County Treasury, the Controller
aof Budger and the Notional Treasury’

(i) The NG-CDF Board should engage the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

{PSASE) to conduct continuous capacity building on financial reparting standards for
all NG-CDF constituency staff.

2.0 Variance between Financial Statement Figures and Supporting Schedules

The balances reflected in the statement of financial performance under use of goods and
services and compensation o employess of Kshs, 10,119,288.00 and Kshs.2,723,264.00,
respectively, differ from amounts indicated in the supporting schedules/payment vouchers
as shown below.

Financial | Supporting Variance (Kshs)

statement figures = documents/sched

{Kshs) | ules (Kshs)
Use of goods 10,119,288.00 | 10,223,518.00 204,230.00
Compensation of 2,223,264.00 1,630,041.00 573,223.00
employvess

In view of the foregoing, the accuracy and validity of financial statements for the vear
ended 30 June could not be ascertained.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

The amount expensed under the uwse of goods and services and compensation to
employees are Kshs 10,119,287.94 and Kshs 2, 223.264.00 respectively, as is in the
financial statements. The payment schedules & vouchers supporting the values for the use
of goads and for compensation of employees were availed to the auditors for review.

Committee (hhservationy
The Committee abserved thar -
0 The gquery arose because the Fund Accaunt Manager did not provide payment

schedules and vouchers supporting the expenditures on the use of goods and
services and for compensation of employees at the time of the audit.
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217.

218,

221.

222.

fif}  The documentations were later submitted fo the auditor for audit review and
verification.

Comminee Recommendation

The Accounting Officer ensures that all Fund Account Manager comply with the
provisions of Sections 62 (1) (b} and (c} of the Public Audit Act, No.34 of 2013, which
provides that - “(1) A person shall noi—

{(h) without justification, fuil te provide information required ander this Act and

fe) withowut justification, fuil to provide information within reasonable time thar is
regquired ander this Acr™,

3.0 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Included in the cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.58, 253,703.00 are stale
cheques totaling 1o Kshs.2, 119,763.00, which had not been reversed in the cash book as
at 30 June 2016,

In the circumstances, it was not possible to confirm that the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.58, 253,703 was fairly stated.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

The stale cheques of Ksh, 2,1 19.763.00 were reversed in the cashbook and reissued to
other beneficiaries. The cash-book extract were availed to the auditors for review.

Cummittee Observation

The Committee observed that the siale cheques Ksh. 2,119.763.00 were reversed in the
cashbook and reissued to other beneficiaries. An extract of the cashbook was availed ro
the auditors for review

Cemnitiee Recommendations

The Commiliee recommends thol —

(i} The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Manager:

al Keeps financial and other accounting records that are accurate, reliable, and
complede,

b Adhere to accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board (FSASB) as provided by Seciion 81(3) of the PFM Act, No. 18 of 2012 which
provides that ‘The Accounting Officer Shall prepare the financial statements in a
form  that  complies  with  the  relevant  occounting  standards
prescribed  and  published by the Accounting  Standards  Board  from
time to time'
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c) Adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Act (National CGovernment), 20115 which
provides that *Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with receiving
cash or making payments a cash  book showing  the  receipis
and payments and shall mainrgin such other books and  regisfers as  may
be necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accounts
af the Vore for which he or she is responsible” and

d) Adhere to Regulation 101¢4) of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015 which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Sorm that civmpiies with the refevant acoouniing stamdards
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, noet later
than three months after the end of the fInoncial year and submir them io
the Awditor General with o copy fo the Coanty Treasury, the Conirofler
af Budget and the National Treasury'

f}  The NG-CDF Board should engage the Public Sector Accounting Stondards Board
fPSASB) to conduct continuous capacity building on financial reporting standards for
afl NG-CDF eanstituency staff.

4.0 Unsupported Expenditure

223. The management made payments totalling Kshs.11, 683,085.00 with respect to items
under use of goods and services, other grants and transfers to other government entities,
which however, were not supported with relevant documents,

224, Consequently, it was not possible to ascertain the propriety of the expenditure totalling
Kshs. 11, 683.085.00 which is over and above Kshs. 10,119.288.00 is reflected in the
financial statements.

Response by the Fund Account Manapger

225. The payment vouchers and supporting schedules have since been availed to the auditor for
verification, Copies were provided for review.

Commiftee OQhservalion

226, The Commirtee observed that the Fund Account Manager provided pavment vouchers,
supporting schedules, evidence of physical existence/phatos to the Office of the Auditor
General for verification. The gquery was adegquately addressed and resolved.

Commitice Recommendation
227. The Accounting Officer ensures that the Fund Account Manager comply with the
provisions of Sections 62 (1} (b) and fc) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, which states that
A person shall not —
() withowt justification, fail to provide information required under this Act and

fch without justification, feil fo provide information witlin reasonable time that s
required under this Ace®,
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228.

229.

230,

231.

232,

5.0 Irregular Procurement

The Fund paid Kshs.4,002,000.00 to a local company in respeet of supply of computers
and accessories. However, it was noted that the payments were not supported by
quotations from interested bidders, and also, the office did not maintain store records such
as 511 and 53 cards.

Consequently, the propriety of this expenditure could not be ascertained and management
breached the provisions of the Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2005.

Response by the Fund Account Manager
The guotations, 511 and 83 cards were provided to the auditors for verification.
Committee Observation

The Commitiee observed that the Fund Account Manager submived guorarions, 511 and
53 cards to the Office of the Auditor General for verification. The query was adequately
ﬂ{j{#ﬁ'.‘i.‘fl’d -[l'ﬂl!.lr J"E.'!l'l:.i'lr'l-'E'{.Ill.

Committee Recommendations

The Committee recommended that: —

(il The Fund Account Manager ensures compliance with
i) provisions of Public FProcurement and Asser Disposal Act, 2015 and Public

Procurement Regulations, 2020,

fiid  The NG-CDF Board in consultation with the Public Procuremeni Regulatory

Authority (PPRA), showld conduct continwous capacity building 1o all Fund Account
Managers on procurement laws and regulations within six {3} months of the rabling of
this Report.

fivi  The Accouming Officer ensures thar all Fund Accoumt Managers comply with the

provisions of Sections 62 (1} (b} and (c) of the Public Audit Act, No.34 of 2015, which
provides that — “(1) A person shall not—

(B} without justification, fuil to provide infermation required under this Act and

{c) withowt justification, fail o provide information within reasonable time thai is
required under this Act™,
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OTHER MATTER

1.0 Budget Performance

233.

The Fund had budget receipts of Kshs.157, 459,.779.00, including Kshs brought forward

from 2014/2015. However, the actual expenditure was only Kshs 99.206,073.00, resulting
in an under-expenditure of Kshs. 38,253,702.00, as analyzed below.

Reeeipt!
eXpense

item

Cdriginal
Budget

Adjustmen | Final

ts

budget

Actual on
comparable
hasis

Budget
utilization

Difference

ool
utilizati
n

A

B

I C=atb

d

E=c-d

F=dich

Receipts

k.shs

Kshs

kshs

kshs

kshs

Transfers
from ngedf
board

108,731,909

48,727 867

157,459,776

157459776

Froceeds
from sale
of assets

Other

receipts

Totals

108,731,909

48,727,867

157,459,776

157459776

100%

Payments

Compensat
ion of

employees

2.811.460

SRR, 196

3,399,656

2,223,264

1,176,392

65.4%

Use of
goods and
services

6,845,325

3,273,963

10,119,288

10,119,288

100%:

Transfers
to other
governmen
I units

30,687,477

25,137,829

15,825,306

44249,226

31,576,079

58.4%

Other
grants and
transfers

48,387,647

16,748,236

65,135,883

42,523,258

22,612,625

65.3%

Acquisitio
n of assets

91,038

91,038

91,038

1 00

&0




Other - | 2,888,606 2,388,606 -| 2,888,606 E,
payments
Totals 108,731,909 | 48,727.867 | 157.459,776 | 99.2026,073 | 58,253,703 63%

234, Consequently, the Fund did not operate within the approved budget.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

235,

The Constituency did not receive all funds for the financial year 2015/2016 and hence did

not implement all the projects. However, the projects were implemented in the subsequent
financial year to completion. The completion certificates for the projects & AIE’s for
20152006 were availed to the auditors for review.

Canmmitiee (hhyervatinns

236,

The Commitiee observed thar: —

{{) This was occasioned by the late disbursement of funds by the National Treasury.

fit} The Fund Accowmt Manager availed the bank siatements to the Office af the Auditor
Creneral for review amd verificarion.

(i) The profects were [mplemented in the subsequent financial yvear. The compleiion
certificares were availed o the auditors for review,

Caommittee Recommendalion

237,

The Committee recommends that the National Treasury should ensure timely and

aclequate distursement of funds to the National Government Constituencies Develapment
Fund Board for immediate release to the Constifuencies.

2.0 Project Analysis

238.

The CDF had an approved plan to implement a total of 324 projects. However, 45 projects

valued at Kshs. 15,800,000 were re-allocated, 2 projects valued at Kshs. 1,000,000 stalled,
105 projects valued at Kshs. 110,274,432 were on-going, and only 172 projects valued at
Kshs. 157 885,826 were completed.

Sector/status

Re-allocated

Stalled

Ongoing

Complete

MNo. | Value
Kshs

No. | Value

kshs

No. | Value
kshs

No. | Value
kshs

Administration

2 1,000,000

9 14,356,784 [ 19

28,935,580
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Agriculture 1 200,000 I 250,000
Bursary 2 19,050,000 |3 25,000,000
Education 10| 2,040,000 60 | 54,000,000 |87 | 55204869
Emergency 1 5,767.647 2 B, 964,725
Environment 10 | 300,00 100 | 300,000

Health 3 1,400,00 4 1,700,000 5 6,332,759
Market

Water 3 3,000,000 | 900,000 3 2,350,000
Road 5 1,250,000 34 | 23327987
Electricity 4 160,000

Security 9 5,630,000 12| 9,900,000 13 | 3,800,000
Uncategorized 5 4,100,00 3 400,000
Sports 1 2,000,000 2 3,319,906
Total 45 | 15,800,000 1,000,000 | 105 [ 110,27442 | 172 | 157,885,826

239, In view of the foregoing, the Fund did not deliver the expected services to the constituents

and, therefore, did not achieve its development objectives.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

240. The projects were not completed due to late disbursement of funds by the ex-chequer.
However, the funds were received and utilized as per the budget.
241, A list of projects and status were provided.

Cammittee Qbservation

242, The Committee observed that the query avose due ta late disbursement from the

exchequer. The funds were later received and wtilized as per the budger.

Commitice Recommendation

243,  The Commiitee recommends that the Cabinet Secretary for the National Treasury should
ensure timely dishursement of funds to the National Government Constituencies
Development Fund Board for immediare release io the constituencies.
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REPORTS ON THE AUDITED ACCOUNTS OF LUANDA CONSTITUENCY NG-
CDF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS 2013/2014, 2014/2015 AND 20152016

LUANDA CONSTITUENCY

244, The Fund Account Manager, Mr. Philip Odida, appeared before the Committee on 3% May,
2023 to respond to the audit matters raised in the report of the Auditor General for Luanda
Constituency for the financial vears 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and 2015/2016.

FINANCIAL YEAR 20132014

1.0 Going Concern

The High Court of Kenya in its ruling on Petition 71 of 2013 held that the constituencies
Development Fund Act 2013 establishing the Constituency Development Fund Act, 2013
establishing the Constituency Development Fund since enactment of the Constitution of
Kenya 2010 was unconstitutional thus rendering the existence of the Fund illegal. It is not
clear whether legislation providing for the fund will be in place within the period given by the
high court of twelve months for the fund to continue existing. As a result, the going concern
status of the Constituencies Development Fund = Luanda Constituency is doubtful.

Response by the Fund Account Manager
245.NGCDF Act 2015 come into operation in February 2016, The function of the Fund is now
in line with the Constitution of Kenya 2010.

Cannmirtee ahservation

The Committee observed that evenis overtook the issue as it was addressed through the
passing of the NG-CDF Act 2015 and its Regulations 2016, aligning the Fund functions to
the National Government functions. The guery was adeguately addressed and resolved,

2.0 Accuracy and Completeness of the Financial Statements

246.The Financial statements prepared as at 30" June 2014 and submitted for audit were not
supported by detailed analysis of trial balance and ledgers., Further, the opening fund
balance of Ksh. 4163799840 had no support. Conseguently, the accuracy and
completeness of the financial statements for the year ended 30" June 2014 could not be
confirmed.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

247.The Constituency maintains an annual expenditure return which serves as the ledger and the
basis for the preparation of the financial statements. The trial balance and the annual
expenditure return were availed to the auditors for review, Ksh. 41,637,998 .40 is money that
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was received on 16™ June 2014 and not the opening balance. The AIE and bank statement
were availed to the auditors for review,

Commiitee Observarions

248, The Caommittee ohserved thar:
it} The Management provided a copy of trial balance and ledgers to support financial
starement balances,
fii} The constituency was newly created after the 20113 general election and did not have
any fund balance brought forward.
(iii} The query was adequately addressed. and matier resolved.

Commiitee Recommendafions

249 The Committer recommends that the Accounting Cfficer should ensure that the Fund
Account Managers.-

i) Keep financial and other records that are accurate, reliable, and complefe;

{ti} Adhere 1o accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board (PSASB) as provided by Section 81(3) of the PFM Acet, No. 18
af 2002 which provides that “The accounting officer shall prepare the
Sfinancial statements in a form thot complies with the relevant accounting
standards prescribed and published by the Accounting Standards Board from
firme o tme™;

fiii} Adhere to Regulation 10i} of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015 which
provides that “Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with
receiving cash or making pavments a cash book showing the receipts and
payments and shall maintain such other books and registers as maybe
necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accounts
af the Vote for which he or she is responsible®; and

fivl Adhere to Repwlation 101id] of the PFM Ao iNational Covernmeny), 2003
which provides that “An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial
staremenis in a form that complies with the relevant accounting standards
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, not later than
three months after the end of the financial year and submit them o
fhe Awditor General with a copy fo the Cownty Treasury, the Coniroller
af Budget and the National Treasury ™,

3.0 Cash and Cash Equivalent

250. The Statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of ksh.
4,446,676.15 as at 30M June 2014. However, note 12 shows a balance of Ksh.
46,107,674.55, The resulting difference of Ksh.41,637,998.40 was not been explained.
Further, imprests amounting to Ksh.306,000 held by a former Fund manager which ought
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251,

252,

to have been surrendered or otherwise accounted for on or before 30" June 2014 was still
outstanding as at the date of audit. No reasons was provided for failure to comply with the
Government Financial Regulations and Procedures governing the issuance and surrender
of imprests. In addition, the outstanding imprests shown in the statement of assets and
liabilities of ksh. 1,007,300 included amounts alleged to have been surrendered as shown
in Note 14, In view of the foregoing, the accuracy and completeness of cash and cash
equivalents balance of Ksh. 4,469,676.00 could not be confirmed as at 30 June 2014,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

Kshs. 4,446.676.15 was the cash and cash equivalent as at 30™ June 2014, Note 12 to the
financial statements had an error, and it was been amended to reflect the correct position.
Kshs. 306,000 was the outstanding imprest as at 30" June 2014, however, the imprest was
surrendered after the activity was over vide voucher no. 630 and 990, amounting to Ksh
156,000 and Ksh, 130,000.00 respectively. Kshs. 1007300 was the total amount of
imprest taken during the vear out of which Ksh, 101,300 was fully accounted for.

Conpnittee QObservations
The Commitiee ohserved that:

(i} Thar the cash and cash equivalent balance were reconciled to Kshy 46,107,675 as
per the supporting bank reconciliation statement

(i) The owrstanding imprests were subsequently survendered and posted 1o the
cashbook.

Conmittee Recommendation

The Commiitee recommends that the Accounting Officers should ensure thar:

Any officer allocated imprest surrenders within seven days failure to which recovery
should ensue as provided for under Regulation 9376) of the Public Finance Management
Regulations of 2015 which provides that “In the event of the imprest holder failing to
account for or surrender the imprest on the due date, the Accounting Officer shall rake
immediate action te recover the full ameunt from the salary of the defaulting officer
with an interest af the prevailing Central Bank Rare.”

4.0 Acquisition of Assets

254.The tixed assets register (Notel8.1) attached to the Financial Statements did not include the

motor vehicle valued at Ksh, &,130,000.00. No reason was provided for the omission.
Consequently, the fixed assets balance as at 30 June 2014 was understated to the extent of
the mission.
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Response by the Fund Account Manager

255.There was an error while preparing the fixed assel register where the motor vehicle of Ksh.
6,130,000 was not included in the register. However, the fixed asset register was amended
and availed to the auditor for review,

Committee Observation

256.The Committee observed that the omitied asset was subsequently disclosed in the
constituency financial siatements as per the copy of the asset register provided The query
was adequately addressed, and the matter was resolved,

50 Irregular Procurement

257.During the yvear under review, the Fund procured a motor vehicle, office chairs, computers,
and a photocopier at a cost of Ksh.3,000,000, ksh771,980.00 and Ksh, 130,000.00
respectively. However, procurement documents for these assets were not available for andit
review. Consequently, it was not possible to confirm whether the goods worth
ksh.635, 771,980,000 were competitively sourced in accordance with the procurement and
disposal Act, 2005 and Regulations, 2006.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

258. The procurement process was followed in the purchase motor vehicle at Ksh, 3,000,000.00,
Ksh 771,980 on the purchase of office chairs and Kshs 130,000 on the purchase of
computers and a photocopier. The procurement documents were to the auditor for review.

Commitice Observation

259, The Commitiee observed that the Management had provided tender guotalions, minuies,
and local purchase orders o support the purchase af a mator vehicle, affice furniture and
photocopy machine.

Commitiee Recommendations
260, The Committee recommends that: —
fi)  The Fumd Account Manager should comply with provisions of the Public

Procurement and Asser Disposal Act, 2015 and Public Procurement Regulations,
2020,

fii)  The NG-CDF Board, in consultation with the Public Procurement Regulaiory
Authority (PPRA), should conduct coniinuous capacity building to all Fund Account
Managers on procurement laws and regulations.
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6.0 Under Expenditure

2601.The Fund had an approved budget of Ksh.69396,664.00 but spent Ksh.23,288,989.45,
resulting in an unexplained under-expenditure of Ksh. 46,107,674.55, approximately 66% of
the total budget. The low budget absorption denied the constituents the much-needed service
delivery.

Response by the Fund Account Manager
262.The Fund received the last dishursement of Ksh. 41.637,998.40 on 16™ June 2014 which
could not be spent within the financial year and Ksh. 4,446,676 was the closing cashbook

balance as at 30™ June. The projects were completed and are in use. The completion
certificates were availed to the auditors for review,

Corprnintittee (thservation
203.The Commitice observed thar:

The under-absorption way occasioned by the last dishursemenmt of Ksh 41,637 998 40 on
16" June 2004 which could not be spent within the financial year and Ksh, 4,446,676 was
the closing cashbook balance as at 30" June. However, the rollover projecis were
subsequently funded and completed.

Commirttee Recommendation
264.The Commitiee recommends the National Treasury showld ensure timely and adequate

dishursement of fundys to the National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board
Jor immediate release to the Consiituencies.
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FINANCIAL YEAR 2014/2015

1.0 Presentation, Accuracy, and Completeness of the Financial Statemenis

265. According to the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash Basis), the
financial statements presentation format prescribed by the National Treasury requires the
management 1o include the action taken on the previous year's auditor’s recommendations.
In the year 2013/2014, Luanda CDF had a qualified opinion. However, no report on the
progress on follow-up of audit issues raised was included in the financial statements for the
year under review. The presentation of the financial statements were not in conformity with
[PSAS (Cash Basis) as prescribed by the National Treasury in accordance with the Public
Finance Management Act 2012, Further, the statement of receipts and payments reflects
comparative balances for 20013/20014, which differs from the last audited financial
statements,

266.A statement of prior years' adjustments was not provided to justify the changes. The
supporting ledgers of payments for the acquisition of assets worth Ksh.6,341,227.00,
committee expenses of Ksh, 5,378.400 and transfer to other Government Units of Ksh.
1,900,000.00, all totalling Ksh.13,619.627.00 and their supporting documents were not
presented for audit verification. The validity and completeness of these expenditures could
not be confirmed. In addition, the financial expenditure figures differed from the supporting
expenditure returns, raising a variance of Ksh. 2,792.907.00 as an anomaly. Consequently,
the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements could not be confirmed.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

267.As at the time of preparation of the financial statements, the constituency had not received
the final certificate for the previous year. However, the statements were prepared and
availed to the auditors for review. This was erroneous, The statement were amended to
reflect the correct comparative figures. The amended financial statements were provided for
FEVIEW,

268.1n place of ledgers, the constituency prepares annual expenditure returns that give the
breakdown of the expenditure items in the financial statement. Ksh.2,792.907 was an error
of including replacements of various cheques that were not supposed to be in the
expenditure return. The error has been corrected to reflect the correct position.

Conmiittee Observations
269.The Commiltee observed that.

fi) The Fund Account Marager submitied the corvect financial statements ta the auditors
for review,

(i) Ksh 2,792,907 was an ervor of including replacements of various chegques that were
not supposed fo be in the expenditure return. The ervor was covrected to reflect the
correct posiiion.



(iii} The progress on follow-up on prior vear audit issues were later included in the
finencial stateients,
fivl The oudited surplus as ai 30 June 2014 was Kshs 46,107,675, while the amount
carried forward in 2014-201 5 was Kshy 43,485,748,
v} Expenditure on the acquisition of asseis in note 10 was supported.
fvi} Expenditure on comniittee expenses in note § wax supported,

Covnminiee Recommendations

267.The Commitiee rveconimends that the Accounting Officer showld ensure that the Fund
Account Managers:-

i. Keep financial and other records that are accurate, reliable, and complere;

ii. Adhere lo accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Standardy Board (PSASB) ax provided by Section 81(3) of the PEM Act, No. 18
af 212 which provides that “The acceunting officer shall prepare the
financial statemenis in o form thai complies with the relevant accounting
standards prescribed and published by the Accounting Standards Board from
rirme Yo fime™;

fii. Adhere to Regulation 100 of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015 which
provides that “Accounting Officers shall keep in all affices concerned with
receiving cash or making payments a cash book showing the receipts and
payvments and shall maintain such other books and registers as maybe
necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accounts
af the Varte for which he or she is responsible™; and

iv. Adhere to Regularion [01{4)} of the PFM Act (National Government), 2013
which provides that “An Accounting Officer shafl prepare the financial
statemenis in a form that complies with the relevant accounting standards
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, net later than
three months after the end of the financial year and submit them to
the Awditer General with a copy fo the County Treasary, the Controlfer
af Budget and the National Treasury".

2.0  Budgetary Control and Performance

268.During the vear under review, the fund received Ksh. £9,184,197, resulting in an
undisbursed allocation of Ksh, 10,000,000.00. Further budget analysis revealed over/under
expenditure while, in some instances, expenditures were not budgeted for. The fund's
expenditure exceeded the budget by an aggregate sum of Ksh. 19,026,660 incurred in
health, water, sports, emergency, and roads projects without approval. Further, the over-
expenditure incurred in the health sector (totalling ksh.10,441,251 was not budgeted at all.,
In addition, the fund underspent by Ksh. 5,777,224 insecurity, bursaries, and mocks.

L)



Response by the Fund Account Manager

269 The total allocation for the financial vear 2014/2015 for Luanda CDF was Ksh.
99,134,197.00, although the fund received ksh.89,184,197.00, which was less by Ksh.
10,000,000.00. This amount was a commitment by the commitiee towards Emululu
Technical Training Institute as required by the Ministry of Education, Science and
Technology. The committee, however, reallocated the funds to other projects as attached,
after approval from the institute took longer than expected. The funds for the projects were
later released, and the projects have been implemented.

270.Under-expenditure on security and bursary votes was a result of late disbursement of funds.
The projects were implemented and are in use. The completion certificates for the projects
were availed for review.

271.The constituency had previous years' outstanding balances that were brought forward and
spent in FY 2014/2015. The Ksh. 10441,251 was approved allocation for health facilities in
the previous years. The projects were Eliangoma Dispensary, Kima Hospital, Ebusyubi
Health Centre, and Emuhaya Sub District Hospital. Water projects were also budgeted for
Emululu Primary and Ebwali Secondary School, respectively.

Commiitee Ohyervation

272.The Committee observed that the over expenditure was occasioned by projects that were
rolled over from the year 2013/2014, and the under-absorpiion related to unutilized funds
held by the Fund as at 30 June 2015,

Commitiee Recommendations
273 . The Cammiitee recommends thet:

i) The NG-CDF Board should immediately discourage partial allocation of funds to
projecis and ensure that projects are completed within two financial years. Further, the
NG-CDF Commitree should ensure proper costing of profjects is done through
consultation with the relevant Government department to ensure realism of the cost
estimates.

(i) The NG-CDF Board should come up with a realistic palicy framework af costing
projects for each constituency by the end of the 1™ gquarier of the Financial Year
2023/24, which is informed by cost of materials, cost of transporiation, iaxes,
fopography of each constituency and reports from the relevant Government depariment
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3.0 Project Implementation and Management

274.The Fund implemented a total of eight one (81) projects/ programmes in various sectors
during the financial year. At the time of the audit, 2% of the projects had not started, 20%:
were ongoing, and 78% were complete. Since it did not complete all its projects, the Fund
failed to deliver some services (o its constituents.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

275.All the projects could not be implemented due to delaved funding from the ex-chequer.
Ksh.14,796,049.20 was received on 26" June 2015 the projects were completed and are in
use. The completion certificates were availed for review and veritication.

Committee Observalion

276.The Commitiee observed thar the 81 projects could not be implemented due o delaved
Sunding from the ex-cheguer. However, projects were completed and in wse as per the
completion certificates provided.

Committee Recommendiations
277. The Cammittee Recommends that--

i. The NG-CDF Board should immediately discowrage parnial allocation of funds o
projects and ensure that projects are completed within two financial years. Further,
the NG-CDF Commiitee should enswre proper costing of profects is done through
consultation with the relevant Government department o ensure realism of the cost
esfimares.

ii.  The NG-CDF Board should come up with a realistic policy framework of costing
projecis for each constituency by the end of the 1™ quarter of the Financial Year
2023/24, which is informed by cost of materials, cost of transportation, laxes,
topography af each constituency and reporis from the relevani Government
depariment,

4.0 Construction of Dormitory Project - Ekwanda Secondary School

278. The Fund disbursed Ksh. 4,000,000.00 for the construction of a dormitory at Ekwanda
Secondary School. However, procurement records for the project. which was labour-based.
were not presented for audit. Further, physical verification done on 18" February, 2016
revealed that the project, which began in July, 2014 stalled at the lintel level.
Consequently, the Fund and the beneficiaries did not get value for money from the stalled
project and the expenditure totalling Ksh.4,000,000.00.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

279. The project was implemented through a labour contract. At the time of the audit, the
project file was still at the PMC. The file was received and was availed to the auditors for
review, The committee allocated an additional Kshs 4,000,000.00 in FY 202002021 two
complete the project. The project was completed and is in use. The completion certificate
were availed for review,
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Commiitee Observation

280, Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor General, it was established
that:

i.  the query arose because documents were not submitted during the audit period
ii.  the profect was later done 1o completion.
ti,  copies of LPOs, invoices, and delivery notes were later submitted  for
accountability of materials purchased,
iv.  the project was supported by minutes of the Tender Commitiee, which were used to
select suppliers for building materials.

Cammifiee Recommendations

281. The Accounting Officer ensures that all Fund Account Managers comply with the
provisions af Sections 62 (1) (b} and fc) of the Public Audit Act, No.34 of 2015 which
pravides that — “(1) A person shall not— (b)) withowt justification, fail to provide
information required under this Act and (c) withows justification, fail to provide
information within reasonable time that is required under this Act™.
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FINANCIAL YEAR 201572016
1.0 Accuracy, Completeness and Presentation of the Financial Statements

282.The International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) - (Cash Basis) financial
statements presentation format prescribed by the Kenya Public sector accounting Standards
board requires the management to requires the management to include the action taken on
the previous year auditor's recommendations. In the year 2014/2015, Luanda CDF had a
disclaimer audit opinion. However, the report on follow up of the issues raised in the audit
report has not been included in the financial statements for the year under review as
required. Therefore, the presentation of the financial statements does not conform to IPSAS
cash basis as prescribed by Kenva Public Sector Accounting Standards Board and in
accordance with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, In the circumstances, the

completeness and Presentation of the Financial Statement as at 30 June 2016 cannot be
confirmed.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

283.A5 at the time of preparation of the financial statements, the constituency had not received
the final certificate for the previous year. However, the statements were prepared and
availed to the auditors for review.

Corrnitive Mhyervaiions

284.The Committee observed that —
iy The Fund Account Managers experienced challenges in adapting 1o the
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) reporting framework
in the preparation of financial siatemenis.
fiiy  The Progress on follow-up on priov year audit issues were later included in the
subsequent financial statements.

Commintee Recommendations

285.The Committee recommends thar -

i) The NG-CDF Board should conduct continwous capacity building on financial
reporting standards for Constituency Commiitees and the PMC to improve the quality
af reporting and enhance compliance.

i) The NG-CDF Board showld ensure Constituency Committees employ gualified
Accountants for the Constituency Offices beginning FY 2023/24 within the 6%

administrative allocation to the NG-CDFC. This will strengthen the maintenance of
books of accounts and, preparation of financial siatements.

fiii)  The NG-CDF Board should ensure that the Fund Account Managers,

al Keep financial and other occounting records that are accurate, reliable, and
complele,
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h) Adhere to accounting standards prescribed by the Public Secior Accounting Standards
Board (PSASB) as provided by Section 81(3) of the PFM Act, No. 18 of 2012 which
pravides that *The Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
form  that  complies  with  the  relevant  accounting  standards

preseribed  and  published by the  Accounting  Standurds  Board  from
fime to fime ",

¢t Adhere to Regulation [0 of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015 which
provides that ‘Accounting Officers shall keep in all offices concerned with recefving
cash or making payments a  cash  book  showing  the  receipls
and payments and shall mainiain such other books and registers as may
be necessary for the proper maintenance and production of the accounts
of the Vefe for which he or she is responsifie’,

d) Adhere to Regulation 10074} of the PFM Act (National Government), 2015 which
provides that ‘An Accounting Officer shall prepare the financial statements in a
Sform  thar  complies  with  the  relevant  accounting  standards
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Boeard, net  later
than three months affer the end of the financial yvear and submit them fo
the Auwditor General with a copy to the County Treasury, the Controller
af Budget and the National Treasury .

2.0  Bank Reconciliation Statements

286, The Fund did not prepare bank reconciliation statements for its account number
1120261446995 held at Equity Bank, Luanda Branch. Failure to prepare bank reconciliation
is against section 83(1) of the public finance regulations which requires effective cash
management of the cash book and regular reconciliation of the bank statements.
Consequently, it has not been possible to ascertain the accuracy of Ksh. 33,167,881.00

accounts balance reflected under cash and cash eguivalent in the financial statements as at
30 June 2016,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

287.The delay in preparation of the BRS was occasioned by a vacuum left due to the death of the

former District accountant. Bank reconciliation statements were later prepared and availed
for audit verification.

Caomumitiee (hservaiion

288.The Committee observed that benk reconciliation statements were provided to support end-
af-vear balances. The query was adequately addressed, and the matter was resolved
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OTHER MATTERS

1.0 Budget Performance Analysis

289.The MNational Government Constituency Development Fund — Luanda Constituency had

budget receipts of Ksh. 133,627,752.00 including Ksh. 29,090,837.00 brought forward from
2014/2015. However, the actual expenditure was only Ksh. 100,459,781.00 resulting tom
under expenditure of Ksh.33,167881.00. The constituency had underspent budget by
Ksh.33.167.881.00 converting to 25% of the approved budget not utilized. The constituency
did not get full services which were approved for,

Response by the Fund Account Manager

290.The total allocation for Luanda National government constituency development fund was

291

ksh.104,536,913.00, which was received in its entirety as per the attached bank statement.
The amount relating to the previous financial year (2014/20135) was ksh. 10,000,000.00 and
Ksh. 19,090,837, which was the opening balance for 2015/2016. The Under expenditure

was due to the delayed disbursement of funds and the Ksh. 10,000,000 had not been
received by the close of the financial vear.

Cormmitiee Obhservation

The Committee observed that the under-absorption ways due to the delayed disbursement of
funds and the Ksh. 0,000,000 had not been received by the close of the financial year,

Cormitive Recommendaiion

292.The Commitiee recommends that the National Treasury should enswre timely release of

203,

294,

funds to enable the implementation of projects approved by the NG-CDF Board

2.0 Project Analysis

The Luanda NGCDF had an approved project implementation plan for 193 projects with a
total cost of Ksh.271,862,164. However, only 149 projects valued at Ksh.182,957,688.00
were completed, |4 projects valued at Ksh. 24, 030,000.00 had not started, while the
balance of 30 projects with a cumulative value of Ksh. 64,874,476 were ongoing.

Response by the Fund Account Manager

The delay in project implementation was due to the delayed funding from the ex-chequer.
However, the projects were fully funded in the subsequent financial vear to completion.

The list of the projects and completion certificates have been availed 1o the auditor for
revicw.
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Commitiee Observariong

295, Following physical verification by the Office of the Auditor General, it was established
that:

(i} The delay in the implementation of projects was due to the late receipt of funds

fram the excheguer,
fif) The projects were, however, undertaken and completed in the subseguent

financial year.

fiii} Evidence of physical existence/photos of the projects were submitted to the
auditors for review and verification.

fiv) The query was adequately addressed and resolved

Committee Recommendation

296.The Committee recommends that the National Treasury should release funds on time to the
National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board as budgeted for the

implementation of prajecis.
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4.0 CHAPTER THREE

General Observations and Recommendations

297.During the examination of these reports, the Committee made the following general
observations and recommendations, which cut across the four (4) Constituencies in Vihiga
County,

1.0 Reallocation and use of Emergency Funds

Committee Observation

298, The Committee observed that some of the projects funded using emergency funds did not
meet the threshold set out in sections 6(2) and Section & of the NG-CDF Act, 2015.

Commitiee Recommendations
299, The Commitice Recommends thar: -

The National Government Constituencies Development Fund Board should ensure that
the Fund Accownt Managers comply with provisions of section 6(2) and section 8 of the
National Government Consiituencies Development Fund Act, 201 5 which provides thar. -

i. Section 62} "Once funds are allocated for a particulor project, they shall
remain ullocated for that project and may only be re-allocated for any other
purpose during the financial year with the approval of the Board." and;

ii. Section & "{I) A poriion of the Fund, equivalent to five per centum
(hereinafter referred to ax the "Emergency Reserve™) shall remain
unallocated and shall be available for emergencies that may occar within the
Constituency; (2) The Constitwency Commitiee shall determine the allocation
of the emergency reserve in accordance with the Act ;and (3) "Emergency”
shall be construed to mean an urgent, unforeseen need for expenditure for
whiich it is in the vpinion of the Committee that it cannot be delayed until the
next financial year without harming the public interest of the constituents™

20  Pending Ongoing Projects
Committee Qbservation

0. The Committee observed that the critical cause of pending ongoing projects being
common in constituencies was the partial allocation of funds for projects.
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301.

302,

304,

Cammiitee Recommendafions
The Committee Recommends that -

(i} The NG-CDF Board should, with immediate effect. discourage the partial allocation of
Junds ro projecis and ensure that projects are completed at most within two financial
years. Further, the NG-CDF Commitiee should ensure proper costing of prajecis is
done through consultation with the relevani Governmen! department (o ensure
realistic cost estimales.

(i) The NG-CDF Board should come up with a redlistic policy framework of costing
prajects for each consiituency by the end of the 1 guarter of the Financial Year
2023724, which is informed by the cost of materials, cost af transpoviation, taxes, the
topography of each constituency and reports from the relevant Government
department.

3.0 Link Between the Office of the Awditor General sand the Fund Account
Managers

Commitiee Qbservations

The Committee observed that there was poor coordination between the Office of the
Auditor General and Fund Account Managers, particularly regarding the timely response
o audit queries. The Committee further observed that there is a need for the NG-CDF
Board to inform Fund Account Managers across the country to respond to audit gqueries
prompltly.

The Committee observed further that Fund Account Managers did not avail some
documents that were subject of examination by the Auditor-General for verification at
the time of audit. The documents not availed for audit included cash books, bank
statements, payment vouchers, project completion certificates, procurement records and
Bills of Ouwantities.

Commifice Recommendations

The Committee recommends that -

(il the Board to ensure that Fund Account Managers comply with the provisions of
Sections 62 (1) (b) and fc} of the Public Audit Act, No 34 af 2015 which provides
that — "(1} A person shall nor— (b} withowt justification, fail fo provide
information required under this Act and {c) without justificarion, fail (o provide
information within reasonable time that is required under this Act

fii} the NG-CDF Board issues administrative cirewlar directing Fund Account
Managers to comply with provisions of the Constitution of Kenva, 2010, the
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305.

306,

Public Audit Act, No. 34 of 2013, the Public Finance Management Act, No. 18 of
2012 and Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, No. 33 of 2013,

fiii) the NGCDF Board to ensure that Fund Account Managers maintain the oviginal
Project Management Committee files ar the NG-CDF office. while the duplicare
be maintained by the Project Management Commitices at the project's site fo
ensure that documents are available af the time of audit,

(v The NG-CDF Board should ensure Constituency Committees emplay qualified
Accountants for the Constituency (ffices beginning FY 2023/24 within the 6%
administrative allocation to the NG-CDFC. This will strengthen the maintenance
of books of accounts and, preparation of financial statements.

4.0 Accuracy of Financial Statements

Committee Observations
The Commirtee observed that:-

The Committee observed that Fund Account Managers experienced challenges in
adapting to International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) reporting
framework in preparation of financial statements. The Standards were introduced in
2013/14 financial vear in the public sector and failure to comply with the standards in
subsequent years occasioned qualification of financial statements.

The Committee also established that the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
(PSASB) reviews the IPSAS Standards periodically to take into account emerging
issues and conform to best accounting practices. The Committee found that some
Fund Account Managers experienced challenges in application of these standards
while preparing financial statements as evidenced in the audit queries.

Commitiee Recommendaiions
The Commiftee recommendy thai -

it The Fund Accownt Managers comply with the Imternational Public Sector
Accounting  Standards  (IPSAS) framework in the preparation of financial
stetements; and

(i The NG-CDF Board, in consultation with the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board (PSASB) conducts continvous capacity building on financial
reporting siandardy for constituency staff.
The NG-CDF Board, in consultation with the Public Procurement Regularory
Aurhority (FPRA), should conduct continuous capacity building 1o all Fund
Accouni Managers on procurement laws and regulations within six (3) months of
the tabling of this Report
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